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fauji foods

ABOUT
FAUJI FOODS LIMITED
A HERITAGE OF PURE DAIRY

At FFL, our mission is to look after the nation by providing top quality dairy products that are
essential for every home.

Ensuring strict quality control and rigorous safety processes propel us to deliver dairy products
of the highest quality to everyone across the land.

We have refined the idea of pure dairy through our iconic butter that is the standard bearer for
dairy products in Pakistan. Nurpur UHT milk has cultivated its own trust based on taste and
nutrition. Qur commitment to the passion for pure dairy is also reflected in Nurpur Cheese, a
cornerstone of purity in its category. Nurpur Cream has no equivalent in the industry, with its
smooth and delicious taste. A product made from fresh, high-quality milk. Furthermore, Nurpur
Flavoured milk's taste and popularity with kids is a testament to our dedication of serving every
age group in the country.

Moving forward, we strive to expand our horizons in the dairy category that cements our
HERITAGE OF PROVIDING PURE DAIRY.
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BOARD OF DIREGTORS
LEADING THROUGH EXAMPLE




Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Chairman

Sarfaraz, adlarmredamwnlantby qualification, has

oonhibuladmanagemenl several muftina-
tonal companies such as Unilever, SB , Jardine
Matheson / Olayan N and PepsiCo during his varied
career,

In 2005, Sarfaraz established Engro Foods as Its GEQ.
The oomparg&mm a ggeen-field to become the

leadlng lqul In Paldstan. Engro Foods

o receive the
‘Gonap 15 Oom 12, he took a
sabbatical from Engro 5 m stmllah the Karachl

School for Business and Leadership. Sarfaraz rejoined
gn rsnFoodsmCE)hZO13.\\hereheremalnedﬂll

Slnonct2015 he has been Invoived In conauitancy
ammgomaswimlm IBL, JSPE, Smn
Oﬁalﬂ_sal}aeer(Meawne) , Soya Supreme, Burque

Sarfaraz was contracted 10 Grant Thomion for
2016-17 as an executive coach durdng a culture
mﬂﬁemmalLBL He conducts a well-estabiished
mamnng role, with business executives

radLiates. Sarfaraz has coached for
t!No‘mre.'rgEnqm ICi, Descon, PPL, UBL
andGIlySchooI

Sarfaraz was Chalrman of the Broadcasters / Adverts-
ers Councll 2015-18 (oint mntmlllru rg
In Pakdstan). Further, he was rman of the 1
Effle In Paldshn In 2019 He Is also on the
Board of MAP and Patiert Ald Fourdation.,

Sﬂ:famz'Jg|rtl | Group In June 2020 as MD&CED
lizer Bin Gasim Limited (FFBL) til Octobar
2021 During his short In FFBL, NS Innovations
and effeciive business led 1o tumaround of

FFBL makdng It a proftable amtty.

Addtionel Sﬂ:farazspeaksatvarlousmmrm He has
gn taks &t Layo's, Mondelez, Nutrico,
Engro, Octars, ICI, Shell, i, At unversities,
, 8chools and on meda occasions he holds

cll dmngalallslmurm Io creato awareness.

Sarfaraz is deeply interested in playing hig part in
gving back t socisty and has workad on an online
imeractive education modal for mass education, 1o
rmlvemelsaueofltterawnPaloalanmmm
gdecada. In the he was associated with Shaukat
Khanum Hospital 88 & Board of Govemor and with
VW as a Drrector. Ho is also associatod with Hisaar
Foundation and its work on weter / environmental
isguB3 in Pakistan.

Mr. Serfaraz Ahmed Rghman has been imed a3
Mamgmg Diractor & Chigf Executive Officer of FFC,

FFCEL and FFAL w.e.f Qctober 16, 2021.

Mr. Arif ur Rehman
Direclor

Arif started his professional career from Fauiji Fertilizer
Co (FFC) where he initially worked as Process Engineer
in the Ammonia, Urea and Utilities plants. Later on he
worked 28 Process Engineering In-charge, Operations
Engineer-Ammonla and Ammonta DBN Commission-
Ing Engineer. In mid-1994, his sendces were
transferred v RIFC (now FFBL) project team. He
worked at FJFG for about 3 years and was a part of the
multidisciplinary team that developed the FJFC Project
from Inception 1o finm order placement. He lead the
engineeging and Improvement of the Ammonla Plant.
For that project he remalned In USA for about 2 year as
Ammonia Plant Lead.

In 1996, he Joined IC1 Pakistan's PTA Business, which
was the first and Is stll the only PTA plant In Paldstan
with new technology. He worked as the commissioning
leader for the mast complex, Oxidation Plant. Later on
he led all the remaining sections of the PTA plant
(Purification and Utilltles) and took over as the first
local Production Manager for the PTA Business In
2001. Later on he worked as Technlcal Services &
DBN Manager and was appolmed as Site Operations
Manager In 2005, where he wes responslble for
Operations, Malntenance, Inspection and Materlals
Management.

In 2007 he Joined the Fatima Group a8 Project Director
and led the USD 750 Millon Project from ground
breaking tll s commissioning. This was a green field
project comprising of Ammonla, Urea, NP, GAN, Niiric
Ackd, Utlittes and related faclities. One of the sallent
features of the Job was that t wes a self-managed BPC
Project. Arif was engaged with dozens of International
contractors directly and complated the project success-
fuly In 2011.

After the commissioning of the project Alf was
appointed s Director Operafions. In that role he
brought the site to fts full potontial by a serles of
revamps that Included the plants and organizational
and systems Improvernert. As a result the production
Increased from 0.8 to 1,475 Milllon tons per year and
the bottom ling improved from -PKR 2.0 Billion to +10
Bilion.

In July 2016 he was appointed Chief Manufacturing
Officer, ﬂhﬁdhagj Ilhe I-badofOﬂica in Lahorg v.&g
1g8p0Ng aspects of manufacturi
Fatima Group's three Fertiizer Manufacturing facilities,
Fatima Fortilizers, Sadigabed; Pak Arab Ferilzer
Sovncq” Haro. - hen Taporsibily
. Ha respangibi
Operationa, Costs, Budgets and Paople espects for all
Fertilizers. In addition ha is also responsible for the
Supply Chain Function for the ertire group where he
contols the budget of about USD 200 Million per year,
rowth, sustinability and siretegy of the FG; Fertilizer
Usiness.
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Dr. Nadeem Inayat
Director

Dr. Nadeem Inayat is an outstanding professional,
having rich experience in managing, operating and
advising investment portfolio i top tier banks and
organtzations of the Country at senlor level. Presently
he Is holding the position of Corporate Advisor and
Head of Investment Divisian In Fau]l Foundation,

He ks 2 member of FFBL Board of Directors since July
2006. He ks also a member of Board of Directors of all
subsidarles and assoclated companles of Faull
Foundation and Pakistan Maroc Phasphore SA.
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Syed Bakhilyar Kaaml
Director

Mr Kazmmi is a fellow chartered accourrtat with over
35 yaars of experience in a diversa range of sectoral
and functional streia within nafionel and regioral
gconomies. The key areas of his specialization are
fisoal policy and macroeconomic research, groanfield
and brownfield projecis, strategic collaborations,
mergers and acquisitions, outliars in accounting and
financs, strategic level audit and assurance and tax
reforms and strategic level advisory.

Mr Kezmi sarved KPMG for 35 years; last 25 years a8
a pariner. As a partner he interacted with the
leadership in almost every industry, understanding
their vision, their insights, and most importantly on
their businass strategies. His rigorous exposure o a
diverse range of sectors and projects, enabled him to
concaive and culminate strategic value additions for
his dlients, pertaining to public and private sector
omenizations. He successfully implemented a
comprehensive sorvice delivery framework thet
ensures quality assured service provision to KPMG's
clients, and a cross-functional integrefion with the
advisory and taxation services that allowed a robust
and comprehensive servica delivery paciage o the
clients. As an awditor and an advisor, Mr Kazmi
successiully delivered his promise of providing
best-in-class and imtegrity driven sarvices. With his
career progression, e branched into macroeconomic
ressarch with & focus on contributing towards fiscal
and reguigtory policies of Paldistan. He almost single
handedly established advisory practice of KPMG in
islamabad about 2 decades ago which inday arguably
is the go to advisory in Istamabad. This initiative
coverad financial projections, feasibiities, informeation
mamorandums, intemel audit assessmemts, HR
agsesaments, manuals for procssses and comirols,
valuations, and development advisory which included
an assessment of the Pungab and Sindh govemments.

Mr. Bakhtiyar Kazmi has served on a number of
diverse forums / boards in the Private Sector, Public
Sector & Civil Socisty Organization. As & thinker, he
actively spreads his thoughts and ideas through his
articles on national economics, business and taxation
mattes and issues, regularly published in reputable
dailies. Mr Kazmmi is an avid potfer and curmently hold
the position of captain of Islamabad golf club.
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Mr. All Asrar Hossaln Aga
Director

Ali A Aga has over 38 years of multi industry
expariance i & wide range of menagemeant positions
in General Menagement, Marketing, Human Rasourco
Managemant, Adfairs, QOperations and
Supply Chain Management in K1 Pakistan a8 well as
Garman company Hoechst and other national

Companies.

He i3 currently the Managing partner Middie East —
South Asia & Chief Exacutive Paldstan for Ward Howel
International, a8 global Leadership & Management
consuling company. Prior o his involvement with
Ward Howell in 2014, he was working with Pakistan's
leading company IC1 where he worked for almost 26
Years in various sanior positions. He was appointed the
Chigt Executive of K1 Pakistan & Chairman of IC1
Palistan Power Gen Limited during the ransilion
period of K01 Pakistan's ownership from Al@o Nobel
Netheriands to the YB Group in Pakistan in 2013, He
also hekd the position of a Director on the Board of I
Pakistan and worked as Vice President & Managing
Director of ICI's fiagship Soda Ash Business from 2008
1o 2014. He hes alsd sorvad as General Manager
Human Resource for the ICI Group in Pakistan from
2004 tn 2008 and lnoked after HR for the ICI group in
Pakistan and Middie East, and was also responsible for
Ieadarship development programs for the Regional &
Industrial Business of ICI plc globally.

Ali Aga has als0 sarved as a Director on tha Boards of
Paldstan PTA Lid, Alzo Nobel Paldstan Limited, IC1
Power Gen Lid, and Pakistan Society for Training &
Davelopment. He is a Ceriified Director and Accredited
Trainer on Corporais Govemnance by IFC and Paldstan
Institute of Comorate Governanca (PICG), and a visiting
Facutty for PIGG's Director’s training program.

He is an Independent Director and Chairman of the
Audit Committes and member of HR & Remuneration
Commitiee of the Board of Descon Oxychem Lid,, and
has sarved as Independant Director on the Boards of
Public Sector Companies STEDEC Technology
Commercialization Corporation of Paldstan, Inland
Water Transport Company of Pekdstan and Engineering
Davelopment Board. He is also involved in volunteer
work in the fisld of management development and hes
sarved a8 the Vice Chalrman of the Lahore of
Management Association of Pakistan and a Gouncl
member of the Lahore Chapier of Markating
Association of Pakistan.

Ali Aga holds an MBA degree from Drexal University
U.SAand a BSc. Engg.) in Chamical Enginaering from
University of the Punjab. He has ationded the
Advanced Management Program at Harvard Business
School and has baen a guest speaker at various local
and intemational corferences and seminars.

Mr. Basharat Ahmad
Director

Mr. Basharet Ahmad has 40 years of diversified
business eperience, with the g&lﬂmmeﬂt and
Courtry's forernost Multinational -
Unilover Pakistan, engaged in manufanumm and
mareting workl cless Fast Moving Consumer
Products including Ois & Fats, Personal & Houss
Cleaning Products, Baverages, lce cream & Frozen

His prectical experience nciudes Factory Operations,
Industrial Relations, Distribution & Logistics, Supply
Chain Managememt, Selss & Sales Operaiions,
Institutional Businass, Trede Marksting, Customer
Relations, Corporate Reguigtory Affeirs, Negoliations,
GorporalaSocmlprommmy rets Commurica-
tion, Interfaco with the Federal and Provincial
Govemments on Tanft Rationalization, Rulss &
Requlations and Swlam & Procadures.

He hes been assisting the Federel Government and
Provincial Governrments on various projects i@
Formulation of Pure Food Rules, Standardization of
Consumer Products at PSQCA, Nepotiation on APTTA,
Tariff retionalization at FBA, Ministry of Commerce and
Ministry of Indusiry and Spacial Iniiatives etc.

Mr. Ahmad remained responsibie for Training of
Unilevar Pakistan sales & peneral managerment for six
years. In the capacity of Corporaie Fagilitator, Totel
Quality Managemoertt, ha trained tha managemant as
woll a5 Non-Meanegement Staf along with its practical
implemantation by process mapping, alimination of
supatfiuaus, simplification of system and procedures,
thus made the business cost effective in obtaining
substaitial positive results contributing to Company’s
profitability.

In addiion, Mr. Ahmad haes 12 years of tBaching
axperience ‘with various universiies as vigiting faculty.
His meuaizahorﬁ arg; Retailing, Sales Managemert,

Supply Chain Man%emant. Entreprenaurship,
Consumer Behavior, TQM, Brand Managemert,
Mareting, Business Ethics, Industrial Marksting,
Service Marketing, Integrated Merksting Communica-
tion, Advance Topic of Marketing, Customer Relations
Management and Comporate Marksting for MS
Managament, EMBA and MBA classss.

He authored a book on “Successful Retailing™.

Mr. Basharat Ahmad remained Vice Cheimman &
Director, Pakistan Dairy Association, Director, Paldstan
Halal Product Development Board, Executive Cornmit-
tee Member, Duke of Edinburg Award Pakdstan,
Member Paldstan Soap Manufecturers AssoGiation,
and Member Pekistan Tea Assaciation.



Mr. Imran Husaln
Director

A diversified indvidual Imnm orglm 'eflus experience in

Senior Leadership Bxecutive Officer/
Managing Director, wi aprmen track recard of superior
perfomance h teamwork, continued commitment
& application of diversified skill set
The Professional traits include: Strategic Vision, Business
intelligence, Leadership, Team development, Change
management and effective execution.
Professional Memberships
Directorship:
« TPL REIT Management Company Limited
o Augere Limited (Netherlands) BY
 Sharp Communications (Pvf) Limited
© GSDCP (Pvf) Limited
Augere Limited (Nethextands) BV
Global Advisor — 2012 —To date
hmmatmal Business Strategist, Consultant and Glubal
Augere Limited, a mullinational
oktﬁrn Wireles Broadband in Pakistan, Ban m
countries under the brand name GUB

Augere Limited ) BY
@lobal Director Services and Business Support
2008 -2012

Auere Pakistan Limited
Chief Bxecuiive Officer — 2008 — 2008

mmmmmbuﬂd&sdm

Chief Brecutive Officer — 2003 — 2008

Damnemann Fabrics Lid (PLC), — Integrated Denim
manufacture

Managing Director — 1991 - 2001

Pangrio Sugar Mills Lid (PLO)
Managing Direcior — 1983 — 1995

matmmUd(FLc)

aging Director — 1977 — 1963

Pakdstan Fiat SpA, Haly

Country Advisor — 1974 — 1977

Union Carbiide Pakstan Limited

Economic Advisor — 1972 -1974

Professional Advisory

* Member Prime Minister's Task Force for Land
Allocation — (2005 —

2008
© Member Task Force Board of Investment Paldstan

 Chaiman Sindh Development Forum iz
Commite - 200 pm Organizing
» Chaiman Sindh Smal Indusiries Corporation
Reorganization Task Force — (2002)

= Chaimman Sindhi Adabi Baard, Task Foree — (2002)
© Member Executive Commitiee Pakistan Sugar Mils
Association — (1987 — 1989)

Mr. Javed Kurelshl
Director

Javad is a seasoned, intermational benker having spant
34 years with Giibank. He has held @ number of
senior, leadarship roles across corporaie banking,
courtiry manapermient, risk and public sactor coverage.
He worked for Citibank in 6 different locations
includng Pakistan, Egypt, South Africa, Czsch
Republic, UAE and Singapore whara ho spert the last
9 years before retuming 1o Pakistan in oct 2019, His
lest essignment wes Head of Public Secior Senior
Coverage Group for Asia Pacific covering 14 countries.
Javed has travelled extensively across tha Asia Pacific
and has a good working knowledge of the region.

Javed is preserty working for the IFC &5 an extemal
consultent responsitle for Sanior client coverage and
business origination. He is also on 3 other company
boards including the Paldstan Siock Bxzhange.

Javed has also been a keen cricketer. He captained
Pakisten Under 19 in 1878-79 oniis tour of Sri Lanka
and India. Ha also played first class Crickat for PIA, and
Gindh and represented Sussex under 25 and
combinad English Universities.

Ha has a BA Hons from Sussax University UK and is
mamied with 2 children.

£
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Brig. Dr. Samlia Iram (Retd)
Director

Brig () Semia ram is a retired Army Officer ¢w.a.f 31
Aug 2019). A public health spacialist with special focus
on community nutriticnal/ food requirements for a
haalthy nation.

She remained imoived in administration of various
hospitals o various appointments.  Highligited
appointments include Second in Command, Adm
Offiger, Healthcare Administrator, Incherge Medical
Stores and Senior Madical Officer Incharge Family
Wing, along with steff and instructional duties for sibout
30 yoars in Paldstan Army and Pakisten Arr Force. She
has additional spaciaiy as Lead Auditor, Feld Epidemi-
ologist (Qualified from USA), Human Resource
Manager and Projct Manager/Designer. She is a
master treiner of MISP National Health Emergency
Preparadness and Response Network (NHEPRN). She
also remained as Head of Deperiment, College of
Nursing for about a year. She had besn incharge Raliof
& Rehabilitation work (during Earth Quaks 2005),
Communily Developer, Social Mabiizer, Gander
Developer, Human Activist, Emergency Respondar,
Livalinood Bpert and & Ted’ut:al Wiiter (8
Publications). She has 20 years' exparience 85 a
Primary Healthcere managar.

This 30 years mulli disciplinary experience is tackled
with differamt communities both citizens of Pakistan
and Foreigners and worked within competing cultures.
Sho exhibits high level of motivation, Self-ciscipline and
holds educational qualifications i.e. MBBS, Meastars in
Pubiic Heelth, Masters in Advance Medical Administra-
tion, Diplorna in Disester Management, Certification as
a Lead Auditor, Master Treiner for MISP, Certification in
Madical Defense against Nuclear, Biclogical and
Chamical warfare (CBRNa). Importent research work
includes maimenance chalenges of hospitals,
Monitoring and Evaluation of TB DOTS. Furthermore,
she hed conducted many workshops, Seminars and
Health Security Confarences.
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

On behalf of Fauji Foods Limited, ’'m pleased 1o invite you to review the
company's 2021 annual report. This was a year that established our fortitude
as an important dairy player in Pakistan. it has been a year full of challenges,
markst headwinds, inflation and economic volatility, but every employee
played their part to ensure the safe delivery of our products to consumers
and institutional customers.

Despite the severity of the pandemic and its intense impact on supply chains
around the world, Pakistan has maintained robust and durable food and
agricultural security. The sufficient supply of high-quality food and
agricultural products during the calamity reflects the success of our
govermment in managing the situation.

Despite the difficulties, AL has grown during 2021, and has delivered much
better results than in previous years. We are now on much better and stable
grounds and well placed fo continue the momentum.

FFL looks to the future with determination and confidence. With an increasingly vibrant workplace, we have achieved better retention
levels, with tumover in absolute terms in 2021, We are determined to build on our accomplishments and continue o increase market
share in local marksts. We are also committed to develop our company through transformational initiatives, focused on process
improvement, cost optimization, digitization and building HR competence that we expect to drive increased profitability in the years to
come. We hope that these activities will please both our consumers and our shareholders, while bengfiting our nation and its ciizens.

The Challenges will continue into the new year. By all working together and caring for the welfare of employees and consumers, we
will see our long-term success continue in 2022, also to the benefit of our business partners and shareholders. The Board of Directors

would like to thank them all for their trust in FFL as a dependable pariner.

Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Chairman
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CEQ’S REVIEW

2021 was a year that tested the strength of Fauji Foods Limited as a
contributor to food security in Pakistan. Our prior investments in
infrastructure, processes and a strong value chain truly paid off. It has been
a privilege to lead the Corporation through this difficuft retro and | have relied
heavily on the support of the management team at all levels o deliver on our
possibilities and promises to customers. | am proud of the effort we have
done and enthusiastically believe we have embodied the values that our
stakeholders expected from us.

As we look back on fiscal 2021, our achievements and the resounding

: dedication of our team mark another impressive chapter in FFL history. We

' N . é delivered strong results and maintained a disciplined approach throughout
= the year, which ended with the unprecedented challenges brought by
COVID-19. Thanks to our solid foundations, operational flexibility, measured

risk management and the resilience of our entire workforce, we stood firm

and persevered with distinction.
Financial Performance:
Particulars 2021 PKR Millions | 2020 PKR Millions | Increase/(Decrease) %
Net sales 8,586 7,373 16%
Gross profit/(loss) 921 62 1,379%
Operating profit/(loss) (20) (428) 95%
Profit/(loss) after tax (1,253 (3,058) 59%

Growth momentumn picked up a strong pace during 2021 and trajectory shows a very encouraging trend. This growth provides a
concrete foundation for the company to build its future on. It has helped the Company attaining a healthy contribution margin that
continues improving the grass profit trend. A gross profit of PKR 921 million in 2021 compared with a gross profit of PKR 62 million
in 2020 is testimony of the direction and outcome of the reshaped business model.

An established year for FFL, we have realized returns from historical investments in the Business that enabled us to step up and carry
on our potential to loyal consumers. Through assiduous planning, we ensured our commitment to quality, while realizing healthy upper
and bottom-ling growth.

£

Ebad Khalld
Chief Executive Officer
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LEADERSHIP TEAM

Ebad Khalid
Chief Executive Officer (CED)
Faisal Yasesn
Chlef Ananclal Officer (CFO)
Khurram Javald Shahid Maan
Head Sales & Marketing Head Milk Gollection & Agrl Services
Muhammad Saiman Bhattl
Chief Human Resourcse Officer Head Supply Ghaln Management

Abdul Rehman Butt
Head Procurement

uhlmrnad Hzal Akirtar Lt Col Muhsmmad Babar Raghid (Retd)

Factory Manager Head Admin
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 55th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Fauji Foods Limited will be held on
Wednesday, March 16, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at FFL Head Office, 42 CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase- VIll, Lahore and virtually
through video-link to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of Extraordinary General Meeting held on November 26, 2021.

2.To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts for the year ended December 31, 2021 and the reports of the Directors
and Auditors thereon.

3. To appoint auditors for ensuing period till next AGM and to fix their remuneration.

OTHER BUSINESS:
4., To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS:

Share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from March 10, 2022 to March 16, 2022 (both days inclusive) for the
purpose of holding the Annual General Megting.
By Order of the Board

Lahore.
January 25, 2022 _

Brig Hamid Mahmood Dar (Retd)

NOTES:- Company Secretary
Participation in the AGM Proceedings:

1. Inthe light of threat posed by COVID-19 pandemic and to protect wellbeing of the shareholders, the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Circular No. 4 of 2021 dated February 15, 2021 has permitted to hold General
Meetings virtually via electronic means, video-link, webinar, zooming etc. as a regular feature from the date of this circular till
further orders in addition to requirement of holding physical meeting. Apropos, video-link for participation virtually in the AGM
shall be made available on Company's website i.e., www.faujifoods.com.

2. Please observe COVID-19 SOPs in case of physical participation.

3. Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the General Meeting may appoint a person/representative as proxy
to attend and vote in place of member at the meeting. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at Cormpany’s
registered office duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the time of holding meeting. A member cannot
appoint more than one proxy. Attested copy of shareholder’s CNIC must be attached with the proxy form.

4, The CDC/sub account holders are required to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan: -

(@ For attending the meeting:

i. Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his / her original
national identity card or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii. Incase of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall
be produced at the time of meeting.
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(b) For appointing proxies:

i. Incase of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.
Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

iil. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

iv. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolutiorn/power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted to the

v. Company along with proxy form.

5. Members, having physical shares, are advised fo intimate any change in their registered address and the shareholders who have
not yet submitted photocopies of their Computerized National Identity Cards (CNIC) are requested to send the same at the earliest.

6. Shareholders who wish to receive annual reports and notice of the General Meeting through e-mail are requested to provide,
through a letter duly signed by them, their particulars, i.e. Name, Folio/ CDC A/C No., E-mail Address, Contact Number, CNIC Number
(attach copy). Shareholders are also requested to notify immediately any change in their e-mail address to the Share Registrar of the
Cormpany i.e., M/s Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore.

Consent for Video Conference Facility
Members can also avail video conference facility in Karachi and Islamabad. In this regard please fill the following and submit to
registerred address of the Company 10 days before holding the general meeting.

If the Company receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at geographical location, to
participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange video
conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 5 days before the date of general meeting
alongwith complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.

|/We, of , being a member of Fauji Foods
Limited, holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Register Folio / CDC Account No
hereby opt for video conference facility at .

Signature of member
7. E-Voting
Members can exercise their right to demand a poll subject to meeting requirements of Section 143 -145 of Companies Act, 2017
and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.
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2 1 Directors’ Report to the Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Fauji Foods limited, we are pleased to present
the Director's Report along with the audited financial statements of the Company for BUTTER YOU A

the year ended December 31, 2021. —
Unsalted

Principal Activities

Fauji Foods Limited, 2 majority owned Company of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited = =
(71.63% shareholding) and Fauji Foundation (4.256% shareholding) is engaged in £

processing and marketingof dairy products. The Company's brands include the House L“ :
of Nurpur, a range filled with top line dairyproducts. Nurpur’s portfolio of brands
ensures quality and nourishment to our consumers. In addition, the company is also ==
engaged in tea creamer category providing the Pakistani consumer with a leadingbrand i.e. DOSTEA.

Overview

The Company, In face of all external challenges, achleved an Impressive 16.5% growth In net revenue, PKR
8.6 billion compared with PKR 7.4 billion in 2020. This performance shines further as we maintained our
Operating Expenses in relation to the previous year. The company rode the wave of challenges faced during
Covid to achieve this feat, The Operational Losses for the year decreased by a mammoth 59%, further
reinforcing the growth trajectory and fortifying financial health of the Company. This figure is all the more
impressive when we account for the challenges posed by inflationary and socio-economic pressures.

Growth momentum picked up a strong pace during 2021 and trajectory shows a very encouraging trend.
This growth provides a concrete foundation for the company to build its future on. It has helped the Company
attaining a healthy contribution margin that continues improving the gross profit trend. A gross profit of PKR
921 million in 2021 compared with a gross profit of PKR 62 million in 2020 is testimony of the direction
and outcome of the reshaped business model.

Through fundamental business model improvements, the Company was able to achieve its targeted growth
and profit recovery. These improvements were only possible by relying on a culture of consumer and
customer centricity. The optimal use of value chain aids in driving effectiveness and operational efficiency
across the Company. Under the presence of a dynamic leadership, capabilities were enhanced and a cross
functional model helped the Company in achigving its targets in a seamless manner.

Building a Heritage of Dairy through Innovation/Renovation

ﬁ;gﬁgu({,;j fjf-ilrj
Key foundation blocks of our strategy include relying on the innovation/renovation
program. We aim to leverage our iconic NURPUR brand and its portfolio

Nurpur Cream is the brand-new entrant in the market. lts growth pattern has suggested Jﬂw
that our consumers look towards Nurpur for quality and nourishment.

Keeping the consumar convenience at the forefront of our thought, the all-time favorite |
Nurpur Butter was launched in a butter tub. In addition, keeping the consumption trends £ o
in mind, a variant of Unsalted Butter was introduced, which now acts as a staple for every household.
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Nurpur Cheese came in to the picture with a revamped packaging and improved quality further fortifying
our position in the consumer’s mind of being the ‘dairy expert’.

Further exciting launches are in the pipeline. Consumer testing of our innovation funnel (products, concepts)
is showing promising opporturities for the Company moving forward.

Improving Operational Efficiency in Supply Chain and Production

Our strategy includes a big focus on improving cost competence across our value chain.

Benchmarking, target setting and implementation of cost management initiatives is enabling significant
progress in variable as well as fixed costs.

Strengthening Milk Collection, Agri Services and Key Raw Materials Procurement Expertise

Improvement of capabilities and supplier/farmer development initiatives strengthens our sustainability of
milk supply and other key raw materials.

Purpose Led Sustainable Development

Our sustainable value chain plays a vital role in upholding a promise of health and nutrition to our community.
Our milk collection & agri services teams ensure we look after the farmers and help their communities in
achieving sustainability in the process. This strategy plays a key role in ensuring we have a robust value
chain that can withstand an unprecedented time like the Covid pandemic.

Working Capital Efficiency & Improving Financial Management

Improvement in cash conversion cycle is brought through efficient working capital management. This has

further been supported by reduction of debt servicing expense achieved through right issue / conversion of
sponsors’ loan into equity.

Financial Performance:

The positive changes are attributable to innovation/renovation, product and channel mix improvement,
pricing, cost optimization and efficient expansion in sales/distribution. Raw milk cost, however, remained
somewhat challenging, though our strategy to strengthen our milk collection is already starting to provide
benefits.

PKR million Increase/(Decrease) %
Net sales 8,586 7,373 16%

Gross profit 921 62 1,379%

EBITDA (20) (428) 95%

(Loss) after tax (1,253) (3,058) 59%
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Gross Profit

Revenue Million

Iz

= 2021 m 2020 w2021 W 2020

EBITDA Million Loss after Tax Million

(Zﬁi

= 2021 m 2020 w2021 2020

Increase In Authorized Gapital and Right Issue

In the Extraordinary General Meeting held on July 28, 2021, Shareholders have approved, through a special
resolution, an increase in Authorized Gapital to 18,000 million Shares of Rs. 10 /- each from 10,000 million
Shares of Rs. 10 /- each. Further during the year Board of Directors on September 04, 2021, approved
97.2% right issue of shares of the Company in aggregate amount of PKR 7,807,945,960 (Seven Billion
Eight Hundred Seven Million Nine Hundred Forty Five Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty) divided into
780,794,596 (Seven Hundred Eighty Million Seven Hundred Ninety Four Thousand Five Hundred Ninety Six)
shares of PKR 10 each. The issuance of right shares has strengthened the Company’s equity and liquidity.

Govid and Related Measures

Challenges related to the constant threat of COVID are being thoroughly monitored and proactive precautions
and mitigation measures are in place. To ensure health and safety of everyone, mandatory Covid related
SOPs for employees and service providers are implemented. This includes, facemasks and maintenance of
prescribed social distance at all times. Moreover, all efforts are being made to ensure smooth supply to
trade and consumers.

Future outlook

The Company is on the path of recovery from operating losses, as evident from the results for the year
2021. Growth and operational efficiency are being driven through a focused multipronged strategy.

Operational efficlency

Cost management initiatives are being implemented across our value chain. An efficiency oriented lean
management approach and mind-set Is being strengthened. The Company has already started reaping
benefits in key areas such as production and supply chain. Moreover, this mind-set is enabling gradual
optimization of fixed costs across the Company.
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Sustainable development for Dairy industry

To achieve sustainable sector growth, it is of immense importance that future GOP revenue and monetary
policies are consistent and supportive to this important sector. Company is engaged with multiple relevant
and important stakeholders through Pakistan Dairy Association (PDA) emphasizing the importance of
packaged milk and related products for providing healthy and hygienic products to the nation.

However, management foresees a mixed macroeconomic and business environment with inflationary
challenges, pressure on consumer purchasing power and the constant threat of Covid. The management
team remains committed and resilient to respond to the challenges in the market by increasing capabilities
and by bringing further operational efficiency to make the company’s business sustainable and profitable.

Principle Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Gompany

Risks faced by the Company are not significantly different from those posed to other companies working in
the dairy sector. Risks are reviewed by the management through a robust business and risk management
process. Appropriate strategies and cortingency plans are regularly reviewed to minimize the potential
impact associated with these risks. There are no significant risk and uncertainties posed to the business
and operations of the Company, except as disclosed in the Contingencies and Commitment notes to the
financial statements.

Transaction with related parties

The Company carries out transactions with related parties and amounts, due from and to, related parties as
shown under respective heads are carried out at arms’ length. Except as disclosed in financial statements,
no other transactions were executed with related parties.

Corporate and financial reporting framework:

¢ The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.
Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

e Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment except for
those as disclosed in the financial statements.

e |nternational financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements.

e The system of internal controls is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

There are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue as a ‘going concern’.

e There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are
outstanding as on December 31, 2021 except for those disclosed in the financial statements.

¢ The value of investments of staff provident fund, based on un-audited accounts, was Rs.171 million
as at December 31, 2021.

¢ The Board has approved the remuneration policy of non-executive directors including independent
directors.

¢ The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is included
in this annual report. 21
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Shares held by:

—_

CoNSoO~WLND

CoNSOUA~WN

V.

V.

VII.

1.

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties:

Committee of Admin. Fauji Foundation
Fauiji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

Mutual Funds:

CDC - Trustee PICIC Investment Fund
CDC - Trustee PICIC Growth Fund

CDC - Trustee HBL- Stock Fund

CDC - Trustee HBL Multi - Asset Fund
CDC - Trustee ABL Stock Fund

CDC — Trustee Lakson Equity Fund

CDC — Trustee HBL Equity Fund

CDC — Trustee First Capital Mutual Fund
CDC — Trustee Lakson Tactical Fund

Directors, CEQ and their Spouse and Minor Children:

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Mr. Arif ur Rehman

Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti
Mr. Imran Husain

Mr. Javed Kureishi

Ms. Samia Iram

Executives:
Public Sector Companies & Corporations:

No. of Shares held

67,371,916
1,134,701,257

1,450,045
1,699,356
708,726
209,935
18,500
4,299,089
1,833,743
35,000
585,287

70,001
31

78,879

—_ =

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance Companies,

Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

54,855,867

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting interest in the listed company:

Fauiji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

1,134,701,257

Percentage

4.2530
71.6312

0.0915
0.1073
0.0447
0.0133
0.0012
0.2714
0.1158
0.0022
0.0369

0.0000
0.0044
0.0000
0.0000
0.0050
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000
0.0000

3.4629

71.6312

e Detail of trade in the shares of the Company carried-out by the Directors, CEQ, CFO, Company Secretary and
their spouse and minor children during the year ended December 31, 2021.

Mr. Arif ur Rehman
- Purchased through PSX
- Sold through PSX

Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
- Right issue exercised

Mr. Nadeem Inayat
- Right issue exercised

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
- Right issue exercised

77,500
7,500

15

38,879

0.0049
0.0005

0.0000

0.0000

0.0025
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Board of Directors / Committees meetings during the year 2021:

Eight meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting(s) Attended
Lt Gen Tarig Khan (Retd) - resigned w.e.f October 15, 2021 4
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Mr. Arif ur Rehman - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 3
Dr. Nadeem Inayat - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 3
Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 8
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 8
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 8
Mr. Imran Husain - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 8
Mr. Javed Kureishi - Re-Elected on November 26, 2021 7
Ms. Samia Irami - Elected on November 26, 2021 1
Lt Col Abdul Khaliq Khan (Retd) - Retired on November 26, 2021 6
Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer - Retired on November 26, 2021 6
Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam - Retired on November 26, 2021 6
Mr. Mohammad Munir Malik - Retired on Novernber 26, 2021 6

Five meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Mr. Javed Kureishi

Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga

Lt Col Abdul Khalig Khan (Retd)
Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi

Wb b= O

Ten meetings of the HR&R Committee were held. Attendance by each director was as follow:

Name of Directors No. of Meeting(s) Attended

Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer

Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam

Dr. Nadeem Inayat

Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga 1

oW 2o

Operational and Business Committee was formed on December 03, 2021 Ist Meeting will be held in the 1*
Quarter 2022
Name of Directors No. of Meeting Attended
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga
Dr. Nadeem Inayat
Mr. Imran Husain
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman

OO OoO O

A Special Joint meeting of Committee was held on August 09, 2021. Attendance by each director was as
follow:
Name of Directors No. of Meeting Attended
Ms. Aminah Zahid Zaheer
Mr. Muhammad Haseeb Aslam
Dr. Nadeem Inayat
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti

—_ L =k —L
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Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga

Mr. Javed Kureishi

Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi

Lt Col Abdul Khalig Khan (Retd)

Auditors:
The audit committee reviewed consent of retiring auditors EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants being
eligible for re-appointment to provide independent external audit services to the Company. The Audit

Committee has recommended the appointment of retiring auditors EY Ford Rhodes Chartered Accountants
as statutory auditors of the Company for the ensuing year. The Board has endorsed the recommendation.

Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance:

The requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) regulations 2019, relevant for
the year ended December 31, 2021 have been duly complied with. A statement to this effect is annexed
with the report.

FFL follows a policy framework conducive to more environmentally friendly practices and proper waste
management practices have been adopted for solid and liquid waste, air emission, soil pollution and noise.

Company’s objective towards corporate social responsibility is to prioritize social good alongside the
traditional corporate goal of generating profits.

Directors are under fiduciary responsibility to operate business under a system of governance and controls,
which reinforces stakeholders trust and confidence in the Company.

The remuneration to the Non-executive Directors (including independent Directors) is paid according to the
remuneration policy approved by the Board.

Dividend:
The Board has not recommended any dividend due to loss to the Company during the year.
Annual General Meeting:

The 55" Annual General Meeting will be held on March 16, 2022 at 1100 hours at Lahore to approve annual
financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Acknowledgement:
The Board is thankful to the valuable shareholders and financial institutions for their trust and continued

support to the Company. The Board would also like to place on record its appreciation to all employees of
the Company for their dedication, diligence and hard work.



For and on behalf of the Board

Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Chairman

Dated : January 25, 2022

fauji foods

P

Ebad Khalid
Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: Fauji Foods Limited
Year ended: December 31, 2021

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1. The total number of directors are 09 as per the following:
a. Male: 08
b. Female: 01
2. The composition of Board is as follows:
Category Names
Independent Directors Mr. Javed Kureishi

Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti
Mr. Imran Husain

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman
Mr. Arif ur Rehman
Dr. Nadeem Inayat
Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga

Female Director Ms. Samia Iram

3. The directors have confirmed that none of thern is serving as a director on more than seven listed compariies,
including this Company.

4, The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. A casual vacancy occurring on 15 October, 2021 was filled by the Directors on 22 October, 2021 when Mr.
Arif Ur Rehman was appointed as Director in place of Lt Gen Tarig Khan (Retd).

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of
the Company. The Board has ensured a complete record of particulars of significant policies along with their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company.

7. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

8. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations
with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.
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9. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations which has been approved by BOD.

10. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman (Director/ Chairman)
Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Director)
Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Director)
Mr. Imran Husain (Director)
Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Director)
11. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary including the

remuneration and terms and conditions of employment.

12. Chief Executive Officer resigned from his position and the vacant position has been filled by the Board. There
is no change in the Head of Internal Audit.

13. CEO and CFO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
14. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Javed Kureishi (Chairman)

Syed Bakhtiyar Kazmi (Member)

Mr. Basharat Ahmad Bhatti (Member)

Mr. Arif ur Rehman (Member)

HR & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Chairman)

Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Member)

Mr. Imran Husain (Member)

Mr. Arif ur Rehman (Member)

Brig. Dr. Samia Iram (Retd) (Member)

OPERATION AND BUSINESS COMMITTEE

Mr. Ali Asrar Hossain Aga (Chairman)
Dr. Nadeem Inayat (Member)
Mr. Imran Husain (Member)
Mr. Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman (Member)

15. The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee and Human Resource Committee have been formed,
documented and advised to the Committees for Compliance and Terms of Reference of Operation and
Business Committee are under review of the Board.




ANNUAL
2021

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

No. Frequency
a) Audit Committee: 05 Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 10 Quarterly
C) Operation and Business Committee: 0 Quarterly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function staffed with persons who are suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are well conversant with thepolicies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have conrmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under

the Quality Control Review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that

they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on

code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of

the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of

the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors
have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Xuspes Mroncd Mo $

Sarfaraz Ahmed Rehman Ebad Khalid *
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Dated: January 25, 2022



Production
Liguid Production - litres
Non - Liquid Products - Kgs

Financial Performance - Profitability

Gross profit margin %
EBITDA margin to sales %
Pre tax margin %
Net profit margin %
Return on equity %
Return on capital employed %
Operating Performance / Liquidity
Total assets turnover Times
Fixed assets turnover Times
Trade Debtors Rs. (000)
Debtors turnover Times
Debtors turnover Days
Inventory Rs. (000)
Inventory turnover Times
Inventory turnover Days
Purchases Rs. (000)
Accounts Payables Rs. (000)
Creditors turnover Times
Creditors turnover Days
Operating cycle Days
Return on assets %
Current ratio
Quick / Acid test ratio
Capital Market / Gapital Structure Analysis
Market value per share

- Year end Rs.
Breakup value - (Net assets / share) Rs.

- excluding revaluation surplus Rs. (000)

- including revaluation surplus Rs. (000)
Earning per share (pre tax) Rs.
Earning per share (after tax) Rs.
Earnings growth %

Price earning ratio

Market price to breakup value
Debt : Equity

Interest cover

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

fauji foods

....................................................... L (1) | OO
2021 2019 2018 2017 2016
57,077,538 61,144,281 60,873,948 90,205,808 86,609,115 37,252,653
3906943 1,040,207 1,651,307 1,778,587 725,221 5,415,745
10.73 0.84 -11.82 334 2.79 3.13
(0.23) (5.81) (32.70) (24.08) (29.67) (34.82)
(17.89) (41.28) (74.03) (43.30) (43.08) (45.09)
(14.59) (41.48) (100.77) (37.25) (32.68) (28.69)
35.54 (76.66) (157.40)  (132.99) (46.27) (43.14)
12.89 127.81 (908.41) (a2.47) (28.46) (50.07)
0.61 0.56 0.47 0.56 0.59 0.44
1.01 0.96 0.7 0.96 1.03 0.68
566,068 350,850 181,171 124573 129,705 77,969
19 28 38 60 67 58
19 13 10 8 5 8
707,587 543,983  1,443223 1,380,401 1,021,156 684,806
12 7 5 7 8 8
30 50 80 55 46 48
6,577,469 5866287 5053120 637,178  5403,562 2,717,812
822,325 443,910 777,093 898,415 438319 1,008,155
10 10 6 10 7 4
35 38 61 38 49 89

14 25 29 23 2

(8.85) (26.06) (47.63) (21.02) (19.22) (12.59)
1.27 0.44 0.31 0.58 1.70 0.40
107 0.37 0.18 0.36 122 0.25
9.19 17.37 14.47 30.28 16.46 88.67
0.82 (6.51) (0.44) 1.3 6.60 13.63
1,200875  (5,232,733)  (4,987,204) 718,008 3,486,422 1,801,184
3525519  (3,969,009) (3677,786) 2,142,476 4,945,300 2,241,540
(1.96) (3.91) (8.05) (6.27) (12.15) (13.79)
(1.60) (3.92) (10.96) (5.39) (0.22) 8.75)
59.26% 64.18% -10317%  41.50%  -5.33%  -T18.2%
(.75) (8.43) (1.32) (5.62) (1.79) (10.13)
11.20 (267) (1.53) 22.28 2.49 6.50
2.25 (3.64) (3.82) 4.61 173 2.26
(3.96) (0.65) (1.43) (3.79) (6.45) (9.06)
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Statement of affairs

Share capital

Reserves

Share holder's fund / Equity
Revaluation surplus

Long term borrowings
Capital employed

Deferred liabilities/(assets)
Property, plant & equipment
Long term assets

Net current assets / Working capital
Liquid funds - net

Financial Performance

Sales - net
Gross profit
Operating Loss
Loss before tax
Loss after tax
EBITDA

Summary of Gash Flows

Net cash flow from operating activities
Net cash fiow from investing activities
Net cash fiow from financing activities
Changes in cash & cash equivalents
Cash & cash equivalents - Year end

Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)

Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)

Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)
Rs. (000)

.......................................................... ANNUALL.....cccrercenrererereresorenereresrssvesessmnneses
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

15,840,882 8,032,936 5,284,072 5,284,072 5,284,072 1,321,017
(14,541,006) (13,265,668)  (10,271,276) (4,565,974) (1,797,650) 480,166
1,299,875 (5,232,733) (4,987,204) 718,098 3,486,422 1,801,184
2,225,644 1,243,724 1,309,418 1,424,378 1,458,968 440,356
6,117,338 6,304,524 2,963,889 4,480,940 4,553,055 129,919
9,718,112 2,392,685 (637,262) 6,709,583 8,039,476 1,931,103
- - - (1,571,537) (1,061,248) (628,542)
8,505,263 7,550,093 8,106,036 7,953,144 6,822,274 4,937,751
8,513,441 7,577,052 8,152,036 9,584,783 7,901,844 5,571,678
1,204,671 (5,184,367) (8,789,298) (2,875,200) 1,652,214 (3,167,397)
1,873,907 888,888 114,134 88,221 1,195,302 333,540
8,586,396 7,373,162 5,744,872 7,649,287 7,000,955 3,370,507
921,036 62,262 (678,827) (293,641) 195,125 105,506
(457,148) (1,147,313) (2,434,379) (2,555,185) (2,570,226) (1,367,004)
(1,536,489) (3,043,795) (4,253,029) (3,312,388) (3,016,286) (1,517,940)
(1,252,942) (3,058,112) (5,788,937) (2,849,239) (2,288,262) (966,920)
(19,931) (428,346) (1,878,474) (1,841,925) (2,077,150) (1,173,689)
(393,997) (321,559) (1,960,936) (2,539,892) (3,597,667) (1,573,454)
105,945 (67,252) (739,335) (1,456,341) (1,050,585) (3,862,420)
1,214,413 4,659,344 2,215,323 (292,430) 6,159,323 4,205,063
926,361 4,270,533 (484,949) (4,288,663) 1,511,072 (1,230,810)
169,083 (757,279) (5,027,812) (4,542,863) (254,200) (1,765,272)
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LOSS AFTER TAX
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FORM 34 Q

THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017 4
(Section 227(2)(f)) ~
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING fauji foods
1.1 Name of the Company | FAUJI FOODS LIMITED
2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 31-12-2021
No. of Shareholdings

2.2 Shareholders From | To Total Shares Held
851 1 100 42,282
1398 101 500 634,915
1633 501 1,000 1,593,711
3650 1,001 5,000 10,735,845
1415 5,001 10,000 11,615,716
509 10,001 15,000 6,610,710
411 15,001 20,000 7,693,537
262 20,001 25,000 6,208,366
194 25,001 30,000 5,563,195
126 30,001 35,000 4,182,956
110 35,001 40,000 4,276,388
48 40,001 45,000 2,079,901
113 45,001 50,000 5,567,414
57 50,001 55,000 3,025,013
53 55,001 60,000 3,102,907
30 60,001 65,000 1,895,939
38 65,001 70,000 2,609,328
30 70,001 75,000 2,216,407
31 75,001 80,000 2,436,321
16 80,001 85,000 1,330,669
20 85,001 90,000 1,775,280
12 90,001 95,000 1,121,781
76 95,001 100,000 7,572,954
14 100,001 105,000 1,443,124
6 105,001 110,000 655,500
6 110,001 115,000 675,917
8 115,001 120,000 948,762
13 120,001 125,000 1,609,009
7 125,001 130,000 897,983
1 130,001 135,000 133,500
3 135,001 140,000 415,000
2 140,001 145,000 286,500
14 145,001 150,000 2,094,497
3 150,001 155,000 461,396
4 155,001 160,000 632,018
2 160,001 165,000 326,500
6 165,001 170,000 1,007,619
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No. of Shareholdings

Shareholders From | To Total Shares Held
4 170,001 175,000 699,000
7 175,001 180,000 1,250,387
3] 180,001 185,000 913,000
3 185,001 190,000 568,599
4 190,001 195,000 773,755
19 195,001 200,000 3,782,625
4 200,001 205,000 807,857
4 205,001 210,000 834,966
2 210,001 215,000 422,000
3 215,001 220,000 654,602
4 220,001 225,000 889,500
5 225,001 230,000 1,142,500
2 230,001 235,000 462,000
3 235,001 240,000 716,772
2 240,001 245,000 488,092
4 245,001 250,000 1,000,000
4 250,001 255,000 1,013,500
1 255,001 260,000 256,358
3 260,001 265,000 786,788
2 265,001 270,000 540,000
4 270,001 275,000 1,097,000
1 275,001 280,000 280,000
4 285,001 290,000 1,147,500
1 290,001 295,000 291,000
7 295,001 300,000 2,100,000
1 305,001 310,000 305,658
4 310,001 315,000 1,258,000
1 330,001 335,000 335,000
2 350,001 355,000 707,000
1 355,001 360,000 360,000
1 360,001 365,000 364,496
1 365,001 370,000 370,000
3 370,001 375,000 1,120,476
3 375,001 380,000 1,136,764
2 390,001 395,000 788,401
6 395,001 400,000 2,395,950
1 405,001 410,000 408,000
1 410,001 415,000 410,500
2 425,001 430,000 850,196
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No. of Shareholdings

Shareholders From | To Total Shares Held
2 435,001 440,000 877,500
1 440,001 445,000 444,000
2 445,001 450,000 893,078
1 430,001 455,000 455,000
1 460,001 465,000 463,500
1 470,001 475,000 474,896
1 480,001 485,000 481,135
1 485,001 490,000 487,500
9 495,001 500,000 4,495,857
1 205,001 210,000 208,500
1 510,001 515,000 514,000
1 235,001 940,000 940,000
2 555,001 560,000 1,115,572
1 560,001 565,000 563,500
2 975,001 280,000 1,157,989
1 585,001 590,000 585,287
1 995,001 600,000 996,500
1 600,001 605,000 600,500
1 610,001 615,000 610,666
1 630,001 635,000 635,000
1 655,001 660,000 659,500
1 680,001 685,000 681,600
1 695,001 700,000 700,000
1 705,001 710,000 708,726
1 710,001 715,000 710,897
1 715,001 720,000 719,000
1 740,001 745,000 744,500
1 760,001 765,000 761,500
1 775,001 780,000 778,122
1 780,001 785,000 784,000
2 785,001 790,000 1,577,592
1 865,001 870,000 867,000
1 885,001 890,000 887,683
1 895,001 900,000 900,000
1 985,001 990,000 985,995
6 995,001 1,000,000

6,000,000
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No. of Shareholdings
Shareholders From | To Total Shares Held
1 1,000,001 1,005,000 1,000,525
1 1,020,001 1,025,000 1,023,000
1 1,135,001 1,140,000 1,140,000
1 1,145,001 1,150,000 1,150,000
1 1,170,001 1,175,000 1,171,500
1 1,260,001 1,265,000 1,260,500
1 1,295,001 1,300,000 1,300,000
1 1,325,001 1,330,000 1,328,500
1 1,450,001 1,455,000 1,450,045
1 1,480,001 1,485,000 1,481,000
1 1,495,001 1,500,000 1,500,000
1 1,650,001 1,655,000 1,650,500
2 1,695,001 1,700,000 3,399,356
1 1,780,001 1,785,000 1,782,000
1 1,830,001 1,835,000 1,833,743
1 1,845,001 1,850,000 1,845,784
2 1,850,001 1,855,000 3,706,812
1 1,855,001 1,860,000 1,857,698
1 1,875,001 1,880,000 1,879,307
1 1,975,001 1,980,000 1,976,000
1 1,990,001 1,995,000 1,993,406
1 2,035,001 2,040,000 2,036,500
1 2,165,001 2,170,000 2,170,000
1 2,200,001 2,205,000 2,203,000
1 2,830,001 2,835,000 2,830,742
1 3,125,001 3,130,000 3,129,500
1 3,165,001 3,170,000 3,166,000
1 3,725,001 3,730,000 3,725,500
1 4,005,001 4,010,000 4,010,000
1 4,295,001 4,300,000 4,299,089
1 4,595,001 4,600,000 4,600,000
1 6,685,001 6,690,000 6,687,302
1 12,870,001 12,875,000 12,870,056
1 12,995,001 13,000,000 13,000,000
1 13,015,001 13,020,000 13,017,557
1 15,460,001 15,465,000 15,465,000
1 25,955,001 25,960,000 25,959,367
1 52,945,001 52,950,000 52,945,500
1 67,370,001 67,375,000 67,371,916
1 274,885,001 274,890,000 274,886,371
1 859,810,001 859,815,000 859,811,886

11400

1,584,088,159
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2.3 Categories of shareholders Share held Percentage
2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officers, 148,923 0.0094%
and their spouse and minor children
2.3.2 Associated Companies, 1,202,073,173 75.8842%
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)
2.3.3 NIT and ICP 8,300 0.0005%
2.3.4 Banks Development 1,845,784 0.1165%
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.
2.3.5 Insurance Gompanies 53,010,083 3.3464%
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 10,839,681 0.6843%
Funds
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% 1,134,701,257 71.6312%
or more
2.3.8 General Public
a. Local 234,017,726 14.7730%
b. Forelgn 3,473,510 0.2193%
2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
1- Investment Companies 323,000 0.0204%
2- Joint Stock Companles 76,965,637 4.8587%
3- Other Companies 1,382,342 0.0873%
3. Signature of Gompany Secretary
4. Name of Signatory Brig Hamid Mahmood Dar (Retd)
5. Designation Company Secretary
6. CNIC Number 35201-7127628-1
7. Date December 31, 2021
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2 O 2 1 INDEPENDENT AUDIOTR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF FAUJI FOODS LIMITIED

REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATIONS, 2019)

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Fauji Foods
(the Company) for the year ended 31 December 2021 in accordance with the requirements of regulation
36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the
Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Reqgulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with
the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021

Eyr—te—

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants

Engagement Partner: Sajjad Hussain Gill
Lahore: 21 February 2022

UDIN: CR202110087wYUDr2AlJ
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Fauji Foods Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Fauji Foods Limited (the Company), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, the statement of profit or l0ss, the statement of cormprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as the ‘financial statements’) and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which,
to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Cornpanies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at
31 December 2021 and of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code)and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

39
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Following are the key audit matters:

Key audit matters

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Going concern

The Company has suffered a loss of Rs. 1,253 million, for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Rs. 3,058
million) and its accumulated loss as at the reporting date
amounts to Rs. 16,396 million (2020; Rs. 15,188 million)

The assessment of the entity’s ability to continue as a
going concern is critical to the preparation of financial
statements as it is significant to the decision making of
users of the entity’s financial statements.

In view of the substantial operating and accumulated
losses and significance of assessment of the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern to the financial
statements as a whole, it was considered a Key Audit
Matter.

We performed following key audit procedures, among
other procedures, in this respect:

- Reviewed the business plan of the Company
approved by the Board of Directors

- Performed variance analysis of actual financial
performance and budgeted forecast as per the
business plan for 2021, in order to assess the
reliability of the planning process of the
Company

- Performed analysis of key financial indicators
which support the going concern assessment of
the Company such as comparison of current
assets with liabilities, equity position at the year-
end and operating results as compared to prior
year

- Assessed the adequacy of external sources of
finance available to the Company by inspecting
the relevant agreements

- Assessed the parent company’s commitment to
support the Company based on the recent equity
injection

- Assessed the adequacy of disclosures made in
the financial statements in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable accounting and
reporting standards.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assiurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
S0, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
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® Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

e on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have
been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books
of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Sajpd Hussain Gill,

Byf—le—

EY Ford Rhodes

Chartered Accountants
Lahore: 21 February 2022
UDIN: AR202110087eyRPxivQd
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note 2021 2020
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Rupees Rupees
Share capital and reserves
Authorized share capital 5 18,000,000,000 10,000,000,000
Issued, subscribed and pald up share capltal 5 15,840,881,590 8,032,935,630
Capital Reserves
Share premium 6 1,854,498,097 1,922,317,157
Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment - net of tax 7 2,225,644,056 1,243,724,345
Revenue Reserve
Accumulated loss (16,395,504.,505) (15,187,985,634)
3,525,519,238 (3,989,008,502)
Non-current liabilities
Long term finances - secured 8 5,988,149,276 6,117,124,491
Lease liabilities 9 129,188,382 187,399,528
Employee retirement benefits 10 75,255,499 77,169,944
6,192,593,157 6,381,693,963
Current liabllities
Current portion of long term liabilities 11 112,260,832 117,787,993
Short term borrowings - secured 12 1,933,798,755 1,875,297,551
Loan from parent company - unsecured 13 - 5,925,000,000
Trade and other payables 14 995,323,636 873,500,682
Unclaimed dividend 965,752 965,752
Accrued finance cost 15 1,267,924,682 533,632,385
Provision for taxation 136,357,747 14,316,124
4,446,631,404 9,340,500,487
Contingencies and commitments 16
14,164,743,799 11,733,185,948
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Lw‘*\wﬂ.km $ W( ,
Chairman Chief Equ:utive Officer Drector Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 17 8,505,263,061 7,550,092,840
Intangible assets 18 1,572,247 20,353,143
Security deposits 6,606,122 6,606,122
Deferred taxation - net 19 - -

8,513,441,430 7,577,052,105
Current assets
Stores, spares and loose tools 20 183,210,631 191,143,537
Stock-in-trade 21 707,587,224 543,982,813
Trade debts - considered good 22 566,068,117 350,850,105
Loans and advances - considered good 23 138,378,789 151,199,690
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 24 82,155,615 79,049,014
Sales tax refundable - net 740,111,000 636,649,383
Income tax recoverable 1,359,883,804 1,314,371,072
Cash and cash equivalents 25 1.873,907,189 888,888,229

5.651,302,369 4,156,133,843

14,164,743,799 11,733,185,948
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements,
M*\«ﬂm $ Oﬁ\y s
Chairman Chief Exqéuti.ve Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

44




STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS @

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 fCIUji foods
Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees

Revenue from contracts with customers - net 26 8,586,396,344 7,373,162,067
Cost of revenue 27 (7.665,360,235) (7,310,900,013)
Gross profit 921,036,109 62,262,054
Marketing and distribution expenses 28 (1,019,059,263) (854,143,010)
Administrative expenses 29 (359,124,683) (355,432,212)
Loss from operations (457,147,837) (1,147,313,168)
Other income 30 76,233,076 98,704,064
Other expenses 31 (523,991) (242,918,870)
Finance cost 32 (1,155,050,524) (1,752,267,407)
Loss before taxation (1,536,489,276) (3,043,795,381)
Texation 33

Current (122,041,623) (14,316,124)

Deferred 405,588,641 -
Loss after taxation (1,252,942,258) (3,058,111,505)

Restated
Loss per share - basic and diluted 34 (1.60) (3.92)
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
M‘hwl'hm $ (BKW ;
Chairman Chief Exq‘:utive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
Loss after taxation for the year (1,252,942,258) (3,058,111,505)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 9,331,092 1,049,127
Revaluation surplus during the year 1,423,600,647 -
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus during the year (405,588,641) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (225,599,160) (3,057,062,378)

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

ragedlice B R ;

Chalrman Chief Exetutive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

fauji foods
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 'I
Capital Resorve Revenue Reserves
Issued, subscribed Surplus on
and pald-up Share mluntn “nd Accumulated Total
tal proparty, plant a
capl premium equipmant- net of loss
tax
Rupees

As at 01 January 2020 5,284,071,920 1,925,340,907 1,309417,781 (12,196,616,692) (3,677,786,084)
Conversion of debt to equilty
Parent loan 2,630,000,000 - - - 2,630,000,000
Accrued markup 118,863,710 - - - 118,863,710
Share issuance cast - (3,023,750) - - (3,023,750)

2,748,863,710 (3,023,750) - - 2,745,839,960
Total comprehansive loss for the year
Loss after taxation - - - (3,058,111,505) | (3,058,111,505)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - - - 1,049,127 1,049,127
Total comprehansiva loss - - - (3,057,062,378) (3,057,062,378)
Surplus transferred to accumulated losses
Disposal of plant and machinery - net of tax - - (69,395) 69,395 -
Inaremental depreciation relating to surplus
on revaluation - net of tax - - (65.624,041) 65,624,041 -
Balance as st 31 December 2020 8,032,935,630 1,922,317,157 1,243,724,345 (15,187,985,634)  (3,989,008,502)
Issue of right shares
Shares issued against conversion of loan 5,925,000,000 - - - 5,925,000,000
Shares ssued against cash 1,882,945,960 - - - 1,882,945,960
Share issuance cost - (67.819,060) - - (67,819,060)

7,807,945,960 (67,819,060) - = 7,740,126,900
Tatal compreheansiva lncome for the year
Loss after taxation - - - (1,252,942,258) | (1,252,942,258)
Other comprehensive income for the year
Surplus on revaluation during the year - net of tax - = | 1,018,012,006 - | 1,018,012,006
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation . . . 9,331,092 9,331,092
Total comprehensiva loss - - 018,012,006  (1.243,611,166) (225,599,160)
Surplus transferred to accumulated Losses
Disposal of plant and machinery - net of tax - - (590,954) 590,954 -
Incremental depreciation relating to surplus
on revaluation - net of tax - - (35,501,341) 35,501,341 -
Balance as st 31 December 2021 15,840,881,590 1,854,498,097 2,225,644,056 (16,395,504,505) 3,525,519,238
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an Integral part of these financlal statements.

Chairman Chief Exqéutive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
Cash flows from operatlng activities Note Rupees Rupees
Loss before taxation (1.536,489,276) (3,043,795,381)
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 17.16 418,435,536 699,926,589
Amortization of intangible assets 28 18,780,896 19,040421
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 30 (43,723,546) (32,240,063}
Provision/write off for obsolete stock 21 - 242,290,040
Profit on bank deposits 30 (12,226,916) (44,450,685)
Provision for employee retirement benefits 29,650,329 14,015,232
Finance cost 32 1,142,136,134 1,752,267 407
Profit/(loss) before working capital changes 16,563,157 (392,986,440)
Effect on cash flow due to working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets:
Stores, spares and loose tools 7,932,906 46,402,387
Stock-in-trade (163,604,411) 656,950,081
Trade debts (215,218,012) (169,678,993)
Loans and advances 12,820,901 (86,553,839)
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables (3.106,601) 154,946,976
Sales tax refundable (103,461.617) (73,346,124)
Trade and other payables 121,822,954 (293,241,389}
(342,813,880) 235,479,099
Cash flows used in operations (326,250,723) (157,507,341)
Income tax paid (45,512,732) (151,620,093)
Employee benefits paid (22,233,682) (12,431,110)
Net cash flows used In operating activitles (393,997,137) (321,558,544)
Cash flow from Investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (34,598,712) (163,765,492)
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 128,317,148 52,022,316
Income on bank deposits received 12,226,916 44,490,686
Net cash flows generated from / (used (n) investing actlvities 105,945,352 (67,252,490)
Cash flow from financing activities
Long term finances - net (128,975,214) 1,850,915,648
Short term borrowings - net (156.281) (1,320,867,588)
Lease rentals paid (63,738,308) (138,101,474)
Finance cost paid (407,843,837) (1,654,578,985)
Right Shares subscription received 1,882,945,960 -
Loan received from Parent Company - 5,925,000,000
Share issuance cost (67,819,060) (3,023,750)
Net cash flows generated from flnanclng activities 41 1,214,413,260 4,659,343,851
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 926,361,475 4,270,532,817
Cash and cash equivalents - at beginning of the year (757,278,882) (5,027,811,699)
Cash and cash equlvalents - at end of the year 35 169,082,593 (757,278,882)
The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Ruspasg Hawdluwen $ (BKW ;
Chairman Chief Exqéutlw Officer Director Chief Financlal Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS >

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 fauji foods

1 THE COMPANY AND ITS ACTIVITIES
1.1 Corporate and general information

Fauji Foods Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on 26 September 1966 as a Public
Company under the Companies Act, 1913 (now the Companies Act, 2017). The shares of the Company
are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The Company is a subsidiary of Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited
(the Parent Company). The Company is principally engaged in processing and sale of toned milk, milk
powder, fruit juices, allied dairy and food products. Following are the business units of the Company
along with their respective locations:

BUSINESS UNIT LOCATION
Production Plant Bhalwal, District Sargodha
Registered Office and Head Office 42 CCA, Ex Park View, DHA Phase-VIIl, Lahore.

1.2 Consequent to acquisition of the Company by Fauji Group in year 2015, the management has taken
various operational measures towards transformation of the Company that includes curtailment of
higher input costs, increasing production scales to optimum levels by BMR - balancing, modernization
and replacement of production facility (during the last five years), strengthening of milk collection and
sales and distribution structures. The management has also taken various financial initiatives towards
improvement of liquidity that included time to time raising of equity finance through right issue,
arrangement of long term and working capital facilities to support working capital and capital
expenditure requirements.

Growth’s momentum picked up a strong pace during 2021 and trajectory shows a very encouraging
trend. This growth provides a concrete foundation for the company to build its future. As a result
current assets exceed current liabilities by Rs. 1,204.67 million, equity stands at positive amounting to
Rs. 3,525.52 million and the operations are being financed through sponsor support/equity injection/
bank borrowings.

In the year 2021, the Company has shown recovery compared to 2020 with a topline growth of 16.5%
and reduction of loss after tax by 59.03%.The Board of the Directors ("BOD") of the Company have
approved the business plan for financial year 2022 that shows improvements in cash generation. The
Company has also issued right shares during the year amounting to Rs. 7,807 million against
conversion of sponsor loan amounting to Rs. 5,925 million and remaining issue against cash to
strengthen working capital requirement and meeting financial obligations.

The management and the Board considers that the measures as explained above would result in
availability of adequate financial resources for the Company to sustain the continuity of its business
operations for the foreseeable future and thus maintain its going concern status. Accordingly, these
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the Company
will continue to operate its business, realize its assets, and discharge its liabilities, in the normal course
of business.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan

comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
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- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the
measurement of certain items of property, plant and equipment as referred to in note 17 which are
carried at revalued amounts, while recognition of lease liability and employee retirement benefits as
referred to in note 9 and 10 are carried at present value respectively.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is the Company's functional
currency and all financial information presented has been rounded off to the nearest rupees, except
otherwise stated.

2.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations and forth coming requirements
24.1 Standards, amendments or interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved

accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, would be effective from the dates mentioned
below and have not been adopted early by the Company:

Effective date

Standard and IFRIC (annual periods
beginning on or
after)

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - Definition of a Business (reference to the January 01, 2022

Conceptual Framework amendments)

IAS 16 Property, plant and equipment — Amendment to clarify the prohibition January 01, 2022
on an entity from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, in profit or loss.

IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets to specify which janyary 01, 2022
costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a contract is
onerous or loss-making.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to clarify how to classify debtand janyary 01, 2023
other liabilities as current or non-current (amendments)

IAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS January 01, 2023
IFRS Practice  Practice Statement 2 - The amendments aim to help entities provide
Statement 2 accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by:
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on

Standard or after)
IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards January 01, 2004
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts January 01, 2023

The Company expects that the adoption of the above standards will have no material effect on the
Company's financial statements, in the period of initial application.

2.4.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures resulting from amendments in standards
during the year

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with
those of the previous financial year, except for following amendments to following standards as
described below:

IFRS 7 & IFRS 9 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 — Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 (Amendment to IFRS 16)

The adoption of the above amendments to accounting standards did not have any
material effect on the financial statement.

3 SIGNIFICANT ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
circumstances, and the results of which form the basis for making judgment about carrying value of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Judgments made by management in the application of approved accounting standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a risk of material adjustment in
subsequent years are as follows:

3.1 Depreciation method, rates and useful lives of property and equipment

The management of the Company reassesses useful lives and residual value for each item of
property, plant and equipment annually by considering expected pattern of economic benefits that
the Company expects to derive from that item and the maximum period up to which such benefits
are expected to be available. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying
amounts of respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the
depreciation charge and impairment.
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3.2 Revaluation of property, plant and equipment
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3.3

34

Revaluation of property, plant and equipment is carried out by independent professional valuers.
Revalued amounts of non-depreciable items are determined by reference to local market values and
that of depreciable items are determined by reference to present depreciated replacement values.

The frequency of revaluations depends upon the changes in fair values of the items of property, plant
and equipment being revalued. When the fair value of a revalued asset differs materially from its
carrying amount, a further revaluation is required. It may be necessary to revalue the item only every
three to five years.

Stock in trade

The Company reviews the carrying amount of stock-in-trade for possible impairment on a regular
basis. Carrying amount of stock-in-trade is adjusted where the net realizable value is below the cost.
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Impairment
The management of the Company reviews carrying amounts of its assets including cash generating

units for possible impairment and makes formal estimates of recoverable amount if there is any such
indication.

3.5 Provisions and contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company (based on
current legal and constructive obligations). Based on its judgment and the advice of the legal advisors
for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or provision is made. The actual outcome
of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized
at the reporting date.

3.6 Taxation

The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation
authorities. Instances where the Company's views differ from the views taken by the income tax
department at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of
material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The significant accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied to all periods presented in
these financial statements.

4.1 Taxation

Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with
the prevailing law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax
rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year if enacted, after taking into account tax
credits, rebates and exemptions, if any. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments framed
during the year for such years.
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Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet method in respect of all temporary differences
arising from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. However,
deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of transaction neither affects
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and tax credits can be utilized. The carrying amount of all deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences
reverse based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of profit or loss, except in the case
of items credited or charged to other comprehensive income or equity in which case it is included in
other comprehensive income or equity.

4.2 Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16.

The Company recognizes a right of use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right of use asset is initially measured at cost which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct cost
incurred less any lease incentive received. The right of use assets except for plant and machinery is
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for certain re-measurements of the lease liability, if any. Right of use assets in respect of plant and
machinery are stated at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by reference to current
market price less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss. The right of use assets
are depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease
term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the
lease term or cost of the right of use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option. In
that case the right of use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right of use asset is
disclosed in the property, plant and equipment as referred to in 17.1 of the financial statements.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. The Company has used it
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases where rate is not readily available. The lease
liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease
payment made.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is re-measured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in rate or a change in the terms
of the lease arrangement, if there is change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-substance fixed lease
payment. When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
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the carrying amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in statement of profit or loss if the carrying

amount of the right of use asset has been reduced to zero. Refer note 9 to these financial statements
for disclosure of lease liability.

Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognize right of use assets and liabilities for some leases of low
value assets (milk collection centers/sales offices). The Company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

4.3 Employees’ retirement benefits

43.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

Defined contribution plan
Provident fund

The Company is operating an approved provident fund scheme for all its employees since 01 May
1986. Equal monthly contributions are made by the employer and the employee to the fund in
accordance with the fund rules at the rate of 10% of basic salary.

Accumulated compensated absences

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in accordance with
the rules of the Company. The Company accounts for these benefits in the year in which the
absences are earned. Retired army officers and other employees are entitled to earned leaves of
30 days and 20 days per annum respectively. The unutilized leaves are accumulated subject to a
maximum of 120 days for ex-servicemen and 20 days for management & 28 days for non-
management employees. The unutilized accumulated leaves can be enchased at the time the
employee leaves Company service. The accumulated leave balance in excess of above mentioned
limits is ignored while determining benefit obligations.

The Company uses the actuarial valuations carried out using the projected unit credit method for
valuation of its accumulated compensating absences. The latest valuation was carried out on 31
December 2021. Provisions are made annually to cover the obligation for accumulating
compensated absences based on actuarial valuation and are charged to the statement of profit
or loss. The amount recognized in the statement of financial position represents the present
value of the defined benefit obligations. Actuarial gains and losses are charged to the statement
of profit or loss immediately in the period when these occur.

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan for all permanent employees,
having a service period of more than three years for retired army officers and more than five
years for other employees. The Company recognizes expense in accordance with IAS 19
"Employee Benefits".

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and
discounting that amount. The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The latest valuation was carried out on
31 December 2021.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to
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4.6

4.7
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the then net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability
during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other
expenses related to defined benefit plan are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Past service
costs are immediately recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods and services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers. Account balances are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycles of business if longer). If not, they
are classified as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. Exchange gains and losses arising on translation in respect of
liabilities in foreign currency are added to the carrying amount of the respective liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable, will result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is disclosed when:

- there is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company; or

- there is present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are classified as financial liabilities at amortized cost. Borrowings are recognized
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Company has an unconditional / contractual right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

Finance cost are accounted for on an accrual basis and are included in accrued finance cost to the extent
of the remaining amount unpaid.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement
of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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4.9 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except for freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and
machinery, electric and gas installations, milk churns and other work equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and identified impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount
carried out by independent valuers by reference to its current market price less any identified
impairment loss. Buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and gas installations, milk
churns and other work equipment are stated at revalued amount carried out by independent valuers by
reference to current market price less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss.
Cost in relation to property, plant and equipment comprises acquisition and other directly attributable
costs.

Surplus on revaluation is booked by restating gross carrying amounts of respective assets being
revalued, proportionately to the change in their carrying amounts due to revaluation. The accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is also adjusted to equal difference between gross carrying
amounts and the carrying amounts of the assets after taking into account accumulated impairment
losses.

Increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. Each
year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged
to the statement of profit or loss, and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred to
retained earnings. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the particular assets being sold is
transferred to retained earnings. All transfers to / from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment are net of applicable deferred tax.

Depreciation on all property, plant and equipment, except freehold land, building and plant &
machinery is charged to statement of profit or loss on the reducing balance method so as to write-off the
depreciable amount of an asset over its remaining estimated useful life after taking into account the
impact of their residual value, if considered significant. The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depreciation is significant.

Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of assets, expected physical
wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use of the assets
and other similar factors.

Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an asset
is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is charged for the month in which the asset is disposed-
off.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to statement of profit or loss during the year in which these are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as an income or expense.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amount of such assets are reviewed to
assess whether they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed
the respective recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amounts and the
resulting impairment is recognized in statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset'’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Where an impairment loss is recognized, the
depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to allocate the asset's revised carrying amount over
its estimated useful life.
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Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less identified impairment loss, if any. It consists of all
expenditures and advances connected with specific assets incurred and made during installations and
construction period. These are transferred to relevant property, plant and equipment as and when
assets are available for use.

4,10 Intangible assets

Expenditure incurred on intangible asset is capitalized and stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of three years. Amortization of intangible
assets is commenced from the date an asset is capitalized.

4,11 Stores, spares and loose tools

Usable stores, spares and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items
considered obsolete are impaired. Items in transit are stated at cost comprising invoice value plus other
charges paid thereon up to the reporting date. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores,
spares and loose tools on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence, if there is any change
in usage pattern and physical form of related stores.

4.12 Stock-in-trade
Stock of raw and packing materials, work-in-process and finished goods, except for those in transit, are
valued principally at the lower of average cost and net realizable value. Cost in relation to raw and
packing materials is measured at moving average cost. Work-in-process and finished goods are
measured at weighted average cost and cost comprises direct materials, labour and appropriate
proportion of manufacturing overheads.
Stock in transit is stated at invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon up to the reporting date.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

4.13 Financial instruments
4.13.1 Recognition and initial measurement

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

4.13.2 Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortized cost, fair value

through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), fair value through statement of profit or loss
(FVTPL) and in case of an equity instrument it is classified as FVOCI or FVTPL.

Y
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Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company changes its

business model for managing financial assets in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the
first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The
amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost comprise of cash and bank balances, deposits, trade debts and
other receivables.

Debt Instrument - FVOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCl. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI
are reclassified to statement of profit or loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the
reporting date.

Equity Instrument - FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in statement of
profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognized in OCl and these investments are never reclassified to statement of profit or
loss. However, the Company has no such instrument at the reporting date.

Fair value through statement of profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL.
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On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest or
dividend income, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. The Company has no such investments
at the reporting date.

Financial assets — Business model assessment

For the purposes of the assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including
any interest expense, are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, while the interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Any gain
or loss on derecognition is also recognized in statement of profit or loss.

The Company's financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables, long term and short term
borrowings, loan from the Parent Company, accrued markup and unclaimed dividend.

4.13.3 Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company might enter into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
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Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of
the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognized at fair value. On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying
amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognized in statement of profit or loss.

4.13.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

4.13.5

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position only when the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and intends to either settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment
Financial assets
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on:

- financial assets measured at amortized cost;
- debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
- contract assets.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities, bank balances and other receivables for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the
12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than past due for a reasonable period of time. Loss allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. Lifetime ECLs are the
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-
month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.
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The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations
of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an
assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable
expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However,
financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the
Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Non - financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash
generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of the assets or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognized in respect of cash generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets
in a unit on a pro rata basis. Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for
any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to that
extent that the asset’s carrying amount after the reversal does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at cost. For the purpose of cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash in hand, balances at banks and outstanding
balance of short term running finances.

4.15 Foreign currency transactions and translation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees using the exchange
rate at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translations at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are taken to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency that are measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.

4,16 Revenue recognition
Revenue represents the fair value of consideration received or receivable for sale of goods, net of sales tax,
sales returns and related discounts and commissions. Revenue is recognized when or as performance
obligation is satisfied by transferring control of promised goods or services to a customer and control
either transfers overtime or point in time.

Return on bank deposits is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal outstanding
and the applicable rate of return.

4.17 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a
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4.18

4.19

4.20

customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract. It also
includes refund liabilities arising out of customers’ right to claim amounts from the Company on
account of contractual delays in delivery of performance obligations and incentive on target
achievements.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of
Directors of the Company that makes strategic decisions. On the basis of its internal reporting
structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment. All non-current assets of
the Company are located in Pakistan and 100% of the revenue is derived from sale of dairy and allied
products.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognized as deduction from equity, net of any related taxes.

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

5.1

5.2

Authorized capital 2021 2020 2021 2020
- - (Number of shares) - - Rupees Rupees
Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,800,000,000 1,000,000,000 18,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Ordinary share capital

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each 692,228,762 503,934,166 6,922,287,620 5,039,341,660
fully paid in cash

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 2,639,200 2,639,200 26,392,000 26,392,000
issued as fully paid bonus shares

Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 882,020,197 289,520,197 8,820,201,970 2,895,201,970
issued on conversion of loans
(note 5.5)

Voting ordinary shares of Rs.10 7,200,000 7,200,000 72,000,000 72,000,000
each issued on conversion of

12%  cumulative convertible

preference shares

1,584,088,159 803,293,563 15,840,881,590 8,032,935,630
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5.3 Movement during the year is as follows: 2021 2020
Balance as at 01 January 803,293,563 528,407,192
Shares issued (other than right) against conversion
of loan and accrued markup - 274,886,371
Right shares issued against:

- Conversion of loan 592,500,000 -
- Cash 188,294,596 -
Balance as at 31 December 1,584,088,159 803,293,563

5.4 Ordinary shares of the Company held by associated undertakings and directors at year end are as

follows:
2021 2020 2021 2020

Ordinary share capital - - - - Percentage held - - - - - - - - Number of shares - - - -
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

- voting ordinary shares 71.63% 67.50% 1,134,701,257 542,201,257
Fauji Foundation

- voting ordinary shares 4.25% 8.39% 67,371,916 67,371,916
Directors, Chief Executive, officers and

their spouse and minor children

- voting ordinary shares 0.01% 0.00% 148,923 40,000

1,202,222,096 609,613,173

5.5 The holders of voting ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared (if any), and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

5.6 During the year, the Company has issued right shares at 97.1991% of existing shareholding
amounting to Rs. 7,807.95 million after obtaining all regulatory approvals.

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
1,854,498,097 1,922,317,157

6 Share premium

This reserve can only be utilized by the Company for the purpose specified in Section 81(2) of the
Companies Act, 2017. During the year ended, Company utilized reserve against share issuance cost
resulting from issue of right share.
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Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment - net of tax

Revaluation surplus as at 01 January

Surplus during the year

Surplus transferred to accumulated losses on account of:
- disposal of plant and machinery - net of deferred tax

- incremental depreciation charged during the year - net
of deferred tax

Related deferred tax liability
- disposal of plant and machinery
- incremental depreciation charged during the year

Revaluation surplus as at 31 December

Less: Related deferred tax liability on revaluation
surplus at 01 January

Deferred tax on surplus arisen during the year
Reduction in deferred tax liability due to:

disposal of plant and machinery
- incremental depreciation charged during the year

Deferred tax liability on revaluation surplus as at 31 December

Revaluation surplus as at 31 December - net of tax

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
1,484,933,668 1,577,459,635
1,423,600,647
(590,954) (69,395)
(35,501,341) (65,624,041)
(241,375) (28,345)
(14,500,547) (26,804,186)
(50,834,217) (92,525,967)
2,857,700,098 1,484,933,668
241,209,323 268,041,854
405,588,641
(241,375) (28,345)
(14,500,547) (26,804,186)
(14,741,922) (26,832,531)
632,056,042 241,209,323
2,225,644,056 1,243,724,345

7.1 The Company revalued its freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric
and gas installations and other works equipment during the financial years 1999, 2011, 2015, 2017
and 2021. The latest revaluation was conducted by K.G Traders (independent valuers and
consultants) as at 31 December 2021. Freehold land was revalued on the basis of current market
value whereas other assets were revalued on the basis of depreciated market values. The most
significant input into this valuation approach is price per acre for land, price per square foot for
buildings and present operational condition and age of plant and machinery and other assets.

Note 2021 2020
8 Long term finances - secured Rupees Rupees

Long term loans

Syndicate Finance Facility 81 5,988,149,276 6,066,666,667

Salary Refinance Facility 8.5 50,457,825 100,915,648

6,038,607,101 6,167,582,315

Current maturity presented under current liabilities 11 (50,457,825) (50,457,824)

5,988,149,276 6,117,124,491
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8.1 A syndicate finance facility is jointly led by Faysal Bank Limited, National Bank of Pakistan, MCB Bank
Limited and Allied Bank Limited and participated by Askari Bank Limited, Alfalah Bank Limited, Soneri
Bank Limited, Dubai Islamic Bank Limited whereby the outstanding exposure of all the banks was
restructured into long term and short term exposure on prorata basis. The restructuring was done
under the State Bank of Pakistan's circular No. BPRD Circular Letter No. 13 of 2020 dated 26 March
2020.

8.2 The bank wise exposure of participant and lead banks after restructuring is as follows:

- 2021 2020 Mark-up Tenure and
Note Bank Name Facility Rubees Rubees as per basis of principal
P P Agreement repayment
8.21 Allied Bank Limited Term Finance 568,026,750 646,544,141
The loan is
822 |National Bank of Pakistan Term Finance 941,976,909 941,976,909 repayable in 7
years with a grace
823 MCB Bank Limited Demand Finance 1,084,158,027 1,084,158,027 period of 2.5
years. Repayment
- . 3 Months will be in form of
824 Faysal Bank Limited Term Finance 1,733,459,001 1,733,459,001 KIBOR stepped up
plus 1.5% quarterly
er i
825 |Askari Bank Limited Term Finance 396,544,141|| 396544141 || b instaliment
4 starting from year
payable 2023 and ending
826 |Alfalah Bank Limited Term Finance 247,840,088 247,840,088 quarterly. in year 2027
827 Soneri Bank Limited Demand Finance 495,680,176 495,680,175
8.2.8  |JS Bank limited Term Finance 247,840,088 247,840,088
8.29 Dubait Islamic Bank Limited Term Finance 272,624,097 272,624,097

8.3 The syndicate finance facility is secured by way of pari passu charge amounting to PKR 8,089 Million
inclusive of 25% margin on fixed assets along with mortgage by constructive deposit of title deeds of
property / land measuring 120 kanals and building thereon situated in Mauza Purana Bhalwal, Tehsil
Bhalwal, District Sargodha in favour of security agent (i.e. Faysal bank limited). The syndicate finance
facility is additionally secured through sponsor support in the form of Stand by letter of credit
amounting to PKR 1,000 Million from Askari bank limited and a revolving corporate guarantee.

8.4 All these facilties have been clubbed under Master Finance Agreement executed on 21 December
2020 which became effective from 01 August 2020.

8.5 The Company availed a salary refinance facility under SBP circular number IH&SMEFD Circular No. 06
and 07 of 2020 dated 10 April 2020 from JS Bank Limited. As per the SBP circular and terms of the
facility, the facility is repaid in 8 equal quarterly installments starting from January 2021. The facility is
priced at 3% and secured against a charge on current and fixed assets at a margin of 25%.

Note 2021 2020
Lease liabilities Rupees Rupees
Leased vehicles - secured 9.1 1,010,561 15,703,678
Leased machinery - unsecured 104,013,796 132,399,740
Leased building - unsecured 85,967,032 106,626,279
190,991,389 254,729,697
Current maturity presented under current liabilities 11 (61,803,007) (67,330,169)

129,188,382 187,399,528
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The Company has entered into lease agreements with different commercial banks for vehicles, with a
supplier for filling machines and with a landlord for building. The rentals under these agreements are
repayable in 24 to 60 monthly and quarterly instalments. The minimum lease payments have been
discounted at an implicit interest rate of 8.20% to 13.59% (2020: 7.56% to 14.39% ) per annum to arrive at
their present value. At the end of the respective lease term, the assets other than building, shall be
transferred in the name of the Company. Taxes, repairs and insurance costs are to be borne by the

Company. In case of early termination of lease, the lessee shall pay entire amount of rentals for unexpired
period of lease agreement.

2021 2020
Up to From one to five Up to From one to five
a) Leased vehicles - secured one year years Total one year years Total
Note Rupees Rupees
Particulars
Minimum lease payments 1,978,816 - 1,978,816 14,929,671 6,902,346 21,832,017
Less:  Finance costs allocated
to future periods (153,155) - (153,155) (399,430) (30,859) {430,289)
1,825,661 - 1,825,661 14,530,241 6,871,487 21,401,728
Less: Security deposits adjustable
on expiry of lease terms (815,100) - (815,100) - (5,698,050) (5,698,050)
Present value of
minimum lease payments 9.1 1,010,561 - 1,010,561 14,530,241 1,173,437 15,703,678
b) Leased machinery - unsecured
Particulars
Minimum lease payments 44,032,116 80,857,427 124,889,543 44,032,116 124,757,662 168,789,778
Less:  Finance costs allocated
to future periods (11,627,934) (9,247,813) (20,875,747) (15,561,069) (20,828,969) (36,390,038)

32,404,182 71,609,614 104,013,796 28,471,047 103,928,693 132,399,740

c) Leased building - unsecured

Particulars
Minimum lease payments 38,710,320 64,730,257 103,440,577 34,372,800 98458976 132,831,776
Less: Finance costs allocated

to future periods (10,322,056) (7,151,489) (17,473,545) (10,043,919) (16,161,578) (26,205,497)

28,388,264 57,578,768 85,967,032 24,328,881 82,297,398 106,626,279

9.1 This represent amount payable to Askari Bank Limited, a related party.

2021 2020
Note
Rupees Rupees
10 Employee retirement benefits
Accumulated compensated absences 10.1 23,611,109 21,540,928
Defined benefit plan 10.2 51,644,390 55,629,016

75,255,499 77,169,944
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2021 2020
Note

Rupees Rupees
Movement in accumulated compensated absences
Balance as at 01 January 21,540,928 26,760,382
Charge to statement of profit or loss 1011 10,797,979 5,503,013
Benefits paid during the year (8,727,798) (10,722,467)
Balance as at 31 December 23,611,109 21,540,928
Charge to the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 4,583,495 1,821,249
Interest on defined benefit liability 858,851 1,409,572
Remeasurement loss 5,355,633 2,272,192

10111 10,797,979 5,503,013

Allocation of expense during the year

Cost of sales 4,319,192 2,201,206
Marketing and distribution expense 4,319,191 2,201,206
Administrative expense 2,159,596 1,100,600

10,797,979 5,503,012

The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 10.50% 10.00%
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries 9.50% 10.00%
Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005) SLIC (2001-2005)

As at 31 December 2021, average accumulation of leaves is 9 days per annum (2020: 10
days per annum), subject to a maximum accumulation of 20 days for management
employees, 28 days for non-management employees and 120 days for ex-servicemen
(2020: 20 days for management employees, 28 days for non-management employees and
120 days for ex-servicemen).

Sensitivity analysis
If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the present value of liability at the

reporting date, had fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the present
value of the liability as at 31 December 2021 would have been as follows:
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10.1.3.1

10.2

10.2.1

10.2.1.1

10.2.2

10.2.3

10.2.4

Present value of liability at the year end

Due to increase in assumptions

2021 2020
--------------------- Rupees - - - ---------cooooonnno-
Discount rate 100 bps 21,588,312 25,822,805 21,725,661 28,414,437
Salary increase 100 bps 25,823,439 21,588,577 28,379,411 21,700,676
Note 2021 2020
Present value of defined benefit obligation Rupees Rupees
Balance as at 01 January 55,629,016 49,874,566
Charge to statement of profit or loss 10.21 18,852,350 8,512,220
Benefits paid during the year (13,505,884) (1,708,643)
Charge to other comprehensive income 10.2.2 (9,331,092) (1,049,127)
Balance as at 31 December 51,644,390 55,629,016
Charge to the statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 13,964,743 16,211,737
Gain on settlements - (13,920,378)
Interest on defined benefit liability 4,887,607 6,220,861
10211 18,852,350 8,512,220
Allocation of expense during the year
Cost of sales 7,540,940 3,404,888
Marketing and distribution expense 7,540,940 3,404,888
Administrative expense 3,770,470 1,702,444
18,852,350 8,512,220
Charge to other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain on present value
- Experience adjustments 9,331,092 1,049,127

The estimated expense to be charged to the statement of profit or loss in next year on account of
current service cost and interest cost amounting to Rs. 16.09 million and Rs. 5.42 million
respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 10.50% 10.00%
Expected per annum growth rate in salaries 9.50% 10.00%

Expected mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005)  SLIC (2001-2005)
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As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 9
years (2020: 9 years).

10.2.5 Sensitivity analysis

11

12

If the significant actuarial assumptions used to estimate the defined benefit obligation at the
reporting date, had fluctuated by 100 bps with all other variables held constant, the present value of
the defined benefit obligation as at 31 December 2021 would have been as follows:

10.2.5.1 Present value of defined benefit obligation at year end

Due to increase in assumptions

2021 2020
--------------------- Rupees----------------ccmu--
Discount rate 100 bps 47,221,103 56,483,264 43,692,623 57,360,104
Salary increase 100 bps 56,482,015 47,220,522 57,287,568 43,642,252
2021 2020
Current portion of long term liabilities Note Rupees Rupees
Long term finances - secured 8 - -
Lease liabilities 9 61,803,007 67,330,169
Salary refinance-JS bank 8 50,457,825 50,457,824
112,260,832 117,787,993
2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Short term borrowings - secured
Short term running finance 121 & 124  1,704,824,596 1,646,167,111
Islamic mode of financing 12.2 228,974,159 229,130,440

1,933,798,755 1,875,297,551

12,1 Short term running finance

This represents utilized amount of short term running finance facilities ("facilities") under mark-
up arrangements available from various commercial banks aggregating to Rs 1,935.49 million (31
December 2020: Rs 1,875.30 million). These facilities are secured against charge over current
assets amounting to PKR 2,500 million inclusive of 20% margin along with charge on fixed assets
amounting to PKR 500 million. The facilities carry markup of 3- months KIBOR plus spread of
1.0% per annum (2020: 3 months KIBOR plus spread of 1.00%) payable quarterly in arrears. These
facilities will be expiring in August 2022.

12.2 Islamic mode of financing

This represents utilized amount of short term finance facility (Wakala Istithmar) availed from
Dubai Islamic bank Limited. (2020: Rs 229.13 million). The facility is secured against charge over
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all current assets amounting to PKR 2,500 Million inclusive of 25% margin along with charge on
fixed assets (excluding land and building) amounting to PKR 500 Million. The facility carries mark-
up of 3-months KIBOR plus spread of 1.0% per annum (2020: 3 months KIBOR plus spread of
1.00%) per annum. The facilities are expiring in August 2022.

12.3 Unavailed credit facilities

Out of total facilities for opening of letters of credit of Rs. 150 million (2020: Rs 150 million) as at 31

December 2021 unutilized amount as of that date was Rs. 150 million (2020: Rs 150 million).

12.4 Related party

This includes balance of Rs. 273.08 million (2020: Rs. 333.33 million) payable to Askari Bank

Limited, an associated undertaking.

Loan from Parent Company - unsecured

Mark-up based Subordinated loan - unsecured

During the year, loan availed from the Parent Company (Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited) under markup
arrangement on account of sponsor support of Rs. 5,925 million to meet working capital requirement of

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
- 5,925,000,000

the Company has been converted as paid up capital against right issue.

Trade and other payables Note
Trade and other creditors 141
Contract liabilities 14.2

Accrued expenses

Retention money payable

Due to employees

Withholding income tax payable

Withholding sales tax payable

Payable to provident fund 14.2
Others

14.1 This includes amount due to the following related parties:

Noon Sugar Mills Limited

Fauji Security Services (Private) Limited
Fauji Foundation

FFBL Power Company Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
453,078,380 460,053,918
106,149,269 108,469,670
386,790,073 273,488,242
2,325,832 2,971,672
2,605,427 5,074,879
23,010,176 9,998,263
9,927,557 7,591,762
9,834,572 4,244,388
1,602,350 1,607,888
995,323,636 873,500,682
5,005,726 7,014,925
- 272,400
1,086,921 -
11,451,017 7,438,194
- 1,418,133
17,543,664 16,143,652
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14.1.1 These are un-secured, interest free and in the normal course of business for purchase of
goods or services.

14.2 Employees’ provident fund

Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218
of the Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated there under.

2021 2020
15 Accrued finance cost Note Rupees Rupees

Mark-up based borrowings from conventional banks

- Long term borrowings - secured 502,639,977 143,610,231
- Short term borrowings - secured 11,166,237 81,213,376
- Loan from Parent Company - unsecured 13 750,540,212 293,073,510
Islamic mode of financing

- Short term borrowings - secured 3,578,256 15,735,268

151 1,267,924,682 533,632,385

15.1 This includes amount of Rs. 36.91 million (2020: 15.70) payable to Askari Bank Limited, an
associated undertaking.

16 Contingencies and commitments

16.1 Contingencies

16.1.1

16.1.2

16.1.3

The Company has issued following guarantees:

Guarantees aggregating Rs. 17.61 million (2020: Rs. 14.78 million) have been issued by
banks on behalf of the Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, Pakistan State Oil
and Controller Naval Account.

The Taxation Officer, after conducting audit under section 177 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance) for the tax year 2005, had passed an amended
assessment order under section 122 of the Ordinance raising tax demands of Rs. 34.99
million alleging that the Company suppressed its sales. The Commissioner Inland
Revenue-Appeals (CIR-A) annulled this assessment order whereas the Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR) had set aside the order of CIR-A and remanded the case back to
CIR-A for denovo proceedings. The CIR-A, vide his order dated 03 September 2012, has
allowed partial relief of Rs. 11.32 million to the Company. The remaining disputed amount
after rectification order under section 221 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 dated 16
May 2013 out of Rs. 34.99 million now stands at Rs. 18.28 million. Both the Company and
the Department have filed appeals before the ATIR against the order of CIR-A, which are
pending adjudications.

For the year ended June 30, 2012 i-e tax year 2012 amendment order was framed
determining tax at Rs. 74,128,663 as against Rs. 22,753,512 conceded in the return. The
CIR (Appeals) in his order under section 129 dated December 31, 2018 has confirmed the
action of the ACIR in respect of certain additions and set aside other matters with
directions. The company is not in agreement with the result in appeal and has filled
appeal before the ATIR which is pending adjudication.
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16.1.4 Company was selected for audit under section 214C for Tax year 2014 as per list published by FBR.
For the Tax year 2014, The Department order in this case has resulted in demand of Rs. 5,923,267 as
against refund of Rs. 2,108,564 claimed in the return. Further the company have obtained stay

against recovery of above tax demand under section 140 of ITO 2001, and has also filled appeal
before CIR appeals Lahore, which is pending adjudication.

16.1.5 During the year ended 31 December 2016, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) raised
sales tax demand of Rs. 4.84 million under section 11(2) and 11(3) of the Sales Tax Act 1990 against
inadmissible refund claim and non-realization of sales tax on sale of scrap during the period from
December 2012 to March 2013. The Company filed an appeal before Commissioner Inland Revenue
- Appeals (CIR - A) which was decided against the Company dated November 14, 2016. Being
aggrieved by the treatment meted out, the Company preferred an appeal before Appellate Tribunal
Inland Revenue (ATIR). The ATIR decided the case in favor of the Company and waived off the whole
tax demand against which the Department filed reference before the Honorable Lahore High Court
which is pending adjudication.

16.1.6 During the year ended 31 December 2018, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) through
its order dated 23 October 2018, raised a sales tax demand for the period from July 2016 to June
2017, under section 11(2) and 11(3) of Sales Tax Act, 1990, amounting to Rs. 145.57 million along
with penalty of Rs. 7.28 million against inadmissible adjustment of input tax on goods not related to
taxable supplies, non-realization of sales tax on disposal of fixed assets and non-withholding of
sales tax from payment made against advertisement. The Company filed an appeal before
Commissioner Inland Revenue - Appeals (CIR-A) and demand was reduced to 13m, aggrieved by
the order, company filled an appeal before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

16.1.7 The DCIR has concluded the assessment and proceeding through its order u/s 11(2) for the period
from July 2019 to December 2019 has charged sales tax amounting Rs. 14,000,000. The company
being aggrieved by the order filled appeal before CIR appeals who, through order 08/2020 dated
29/10/2020 remanded the case back to ACIR for re- assessment . The department have filled appeal
before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

16.1.8 The DCIR has concluded the assessment and proceeding through its order u/s 11(2) for the period
from July 2016 to December 2016 has charged sales tax amounting Rs. 6,090,000. The company
aggrieved by the order filled appeal before CIR appeals who, through order 09/2020 dated
29/10/2020 remanded the case back to ACIR for re- assessment. The department have filled appeal
before ATIR which is pending adjudication.

16.1.9 During the year ended 31 December 2018, Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) issued a
show cause notice, dated 09 November 2018, against inadmissible adjustment of input tax on
goods not related to taxable supplies and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against
advertisement amounting to Rs. 399.60 million. Against the show cause notice, the ACIR raised a
sales tax demand of Rs. 135.34 million along with default surcharge and penalty. The Company filed
an appeal with CIR appeals who decided the case in favor of the company through order 10/2020
dated 29/10/2020 and annulled the ACIR order. Department have filed an appeal before ATIR.

16.1.10 The Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (AD-CIR) has created income tax demand amounting
to Rs. 2,423,267 under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax year 2014. Being aggrieved from the
order, the Company filed an appeal before CIR Appeals which is pending adjudication.

16.1.11 The AD-CIR made Assessment Order under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance for tax year 2015 by
reducing the tax refunds from Rs. 6,808,698 to Rs. 5,001,811. The AD-CIR disallow tax credit claimed
by the Company u/s 65B of the Ordinance in original return. Further, AD-CIR also reduced the losses.
Being aggrieved from the order, the Company filed an appeal before CIR Appeals which is pending
adjudication.
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16.1.12 For the Tax year 2013, Amendment order under section 122(5A) has framed on May
16, 2019 wherein additions for alleged suppressed/Un- reconciled sales has been
made at Rs. 43,770,576 and for in admissible exchange loss amounting to Rs.
4,252,697. Further, turnover tax credit has also been disallowed. Appeal has been
filled before the CIR Appeals against the said additions and refusal to grant tax credit
which is pending adjudication.

16.1.13 The DCIR made an amended Assessment Order dated 24 June 2021 and reduce the
losses claimed by the company by disallowing certain expense and reducing the loss
by Rs.6.7 million. Being aggrieved by the treatment meted out, the Company filed an
appeal before CIR Appeal which is pending adjudication.

16.1.14 During the year ended 31 December 2021, ADCIR issued a show cause notice, dated
17 February 2021 against inadmissible adjustment of input tax on goods not related
1o taxable supplies and non-withholding of sales tax from payment made against
advertisement . Against the show cause notice, the ADCIR raised a sales tax demand
of Rs. 100 Million along with default surcharge and penalty. The Company filed an
appeal with CIR appeals on 06 January 2022 which is pending adjudication.

Based on the opinion of the legal and tax advisors handling the above litigations, the
management believes that the Company has strong legal grounds against each case
and that no financial liability is expected to accrue. Accordingly, no provision has
been made in these financial statements.

16.2 Commitments

16.2.1 Commitments, for purchase of raw / packing material, outstanding at the year end were
for Rs. 7.51 million (2020: Rs. Nil).

2021 2020
Property, plant and equipment Note Rupees Rupees
Operating fixed assets 1711 8,282,128,337 7,326,713,116
Capital work-in-progress 17.2 223,134,724 223,379,724

8,505,263,061 7,550,092,840
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17.1.2 Disposal of operating assets

Particulars Cost/Revalue  NBV Amount  Gain Modeot  Relationship With Particulars of
of assets d Amount ecel P pany purchaser
------------------ Rupees ----=--cmocmocmmcnnannn

Plant and machinery
Filling Machine 104,898,800 62,307,732 77,500,000 15,192,268 Market Value Third Party Ecolean Pakistan
Hino FB 2,616,060 148,203 4,500,000 4,351,797  Auction Third Party Sikander Khan
Hino FB 2,616,060 148,203 4,600,000 4,451,797 Auction Third Party Farakh Igbal
Hino FB 2,686,791 152,211 4,500,000 4,347,789  Auction Third Party Fakhar Igbal Tarrar
Bolan 633,140 57,119 400,000 342,881 Bidding Employee Muhammad Umar Farooq
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 274,007 332,100 58093 Company Policy Employee Zulfqar Ali
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 238,651 332,100 93,449 Company Policy Ex Employee Haroon Javed Cheema
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 282,845 332,100 49,255 Company Policy Employee Asad Ahmad
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 274,007 1,191,220 917,213 Insurance Claim Employee Aakif Abbas
Mehran 683,000 126,167 136,600 10433 Company Policy Ex Employee Wagqas Safdar
Mehran 683,000 133,588 136,600 3,012 Company Policy Employee Numan Nafees
Mehran 683,000 129,877 136,600 6,723 Company Policy Employee Ubaid Zada
Mehran 683,000 133,588 136,600 3,012 Company Policy Employee Usman Hassan Rahmani
Mehran 683,000 133,588 206,060 72472 Company Policy Ex Employee Dawar Khan
Mehran 683,000 129,877 136,600 6,723 Company Policy Employee Ibrahim Khan
Mehran 683,000 129,877 136,600 6,723 Company Policy Ex Employee Syed Zohaib Ali Shah
Mehran 683,000 126,167 717,000 590,833 Company Policy Ex Employee Kamran Ahmed Rana
Mehran 683,000 126,167 136,600 10,433 Company Policy Employee Oman Ahmed Paracha
Cultus 1,039,000 203,219 290,237 87,018 Company Policy Employee Raja Wasif Rafique
Toyota Altis 1,990,500 291,992 398,100 106,108 Company Policy Ex Employee Imran Afzal
Toyota Corolla 1,662,000 313,229 332,400 19,171 Company Policy Employee Arfan Nazir
Toyota Altis 1,990,500 297,905 398,100 100,195 Company Policy Employee Zakir Hussain
Toyota Altis 1,992,000 405,396 1,414,593 1,009,197 Company Policy Employee Tehseen Ullah
Mehran 688,000 132,238 680,000 547,762  Bidding Employee Faisal Yaseen
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 258,381 332,100 73,719 Company Policy Employee Hammad Ali Janjua
Toyota Altis 1,990,500 390,032 398,100 8,068 Company Policy Employee Rao M. Imran
Toyota Altis 1,973,000 307,008 394,600 87,592 Company Policy Employee Muhammad Tanzeel Ur Rehman
Mehran 688,000 134,811 137,600 2,789 Company Policy Ex Employee Syed Farhan-ul-Haq
Mehran 688,000 137,600 137,600 - Company Policy Employee Mubeen 5hah
Mehran 688,000 118,951 137,600 18,649 Company Policy Employee Ahsan Akhtar
Mehran 688,000 126,881 137,600 10,719 Company Policy Employee Azmat Abbasi
Mehran 688,000 114,986 137,600 22,614 Company Policy Ex Employee Salman Khan
Mehran 688,000 134,811 137,600 2,789 Company Policy Employee Hammad Khan
Toyota Corolla 1,643,000 328,086 421,457 93,371 Company Policy Ex Employee Muhammad Kashif Kamran
Cultus 1,099,000 219,456 219,800 344 Company Policy Employee Ejaz Ahmad
Mehran 688,000 133,344 137,600 4,256 Company Policy Ex Employee Emmad Igbal Abbasi
Toyota Altis 2,015,500 319,608 403,100 83492 Company Policy Employee Akhtar Hussain
Toyoyota Altis 1,990,500 414,695 536,759 122,064 Company Policy Employee Farhat Manzoor
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 304,011 332,100 28,089 Company Policy Ex Employee Hamza Shakeel
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 304,011 332,100 28,089 Company Policy Employee Fahd Khaliq
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 332,100 332,100 - Company Policy Employee Adeel Ahmad Khan
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 332,100 332,100 - Company Policy Employee Muhammad Ali Asad
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 283,045 332,100 49,055 Company Policy Employee Ahmad Irfan
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 324,977 332,200 7,223 Company Policy Employee Adnan Akram
Cultus 1,099,000 240,012 1,070,500 830,488 Bidding Employee Muhammad Junaid
Toyota Corolla 1,643,000 274,389 328,600 54,211 Company Policy Employee Tarig Mahmood
Toyota Corolla 1,643,000 284,943 2,200,000 1,915,057 Bidding Employee Rizwan Ullah Khan
Mehran 688,000 137,600 137,600 - Company Policy Ex Employee Junaid Hassan
Mehran 688,000 141,415 675,000 533,585 Company Policy Ex Employee Syed Muhammad Zeeshan Ali
Mehran 688,000 132,576 137,600 5024 Company Policy Employee Zaheen Igbal
Mehran 688,000 137,600 137,600 - Company Policy Ex Employee Muhammad 5arfaraz
Cultus 1,099,000 219,800 219,800 - Company Policy Ex Employee Nasir Ali
Toyota Altis 1,997,500 199,750 199,750 - Company Policy Ex Employee Lt Col Ishratullah Khan Niazi
Mehran 708,000 141,600 141,600 - Company Policy Employee Atif Qaddus
Mehran 708,000 141,600 141,600 - Company Policy Employee Raja Naveed 5ultan
Mehran 708,000 118,239 141,600 23361 Company Policy Employee Zaheer Ahmad Khan
Mehran 708,000 118,239 141,600 23,361 Company Policy Employee Habib Younis
Mehran 708,000 113,692 141,600 27,908 Company Policy Employee Muhammad Umair
Mehran 708,000 122,787 141,600 18,813 Company Policy Employee Osama Niazi
Mehran 708,000 145,525 181,924 36,399 Company Policy Ex Employee Mirza Haseeb Baig
Mehran 703,000 121,426 140,600 19,174 Company Policy Ex Employee Muhammad Hussain
Mehran 703,000 121,426 140,600 19,174 Company Policy Employee Faizan Mirza
Mehran 703,000 126,097 169,860 43,763 Company Policy Ex Employee Saleem Rasheed
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 337,026 425,219 88193 Company Policy Ex Employee Abdul Moeed Hassan
Toyota Corolla 1,660,500 320,242 1,850,000 1,529,758 Company Policy Ex Employee Syed Kamran Shamsi
Toyota Altis 1,997,500 591,853 2,160,000 1,568,147 Company Policy Ex Employee Umar Farooq Ahmad
Mehran 762,000 219,507 364,057 144,550 Company Policy Ex Employee Raja Shafaqat Ali Khan
Toyota Corolla 1,682,000 387,622 640,007 252,385 Company Policy Ex Employee Imran Aslam
Toyota Altis 2,694,623 970,287 1,399,551 429,264 Company Policy Employee Muhammad Babar Rashid
Toyota Altis 2,606,000 1,303,001 3,000,000 1,696,999 Company Policy Ex Employee Imran Mirza
Toyota Corolla 1,967,000 868,152 2,041,570 1,173418 Bidding Employee Abdul Rehman Butt
Toyota Altis 2,704,381 1,210,295 1,210,295 - Company Policy Ex Employee Sabir Mahmood
Honda Civic 3,098,000 956,174 956,174 - Company Policy Ex Employee Muhammad Haseeb Aslam
Toyota Corolla 2,028,740 1,330,579 2,640,000 1,309421 Bidding Employee Muhammad Ifzal Akhtar

Various assets having
net book value up to
Rs 500,000 each 7,581,712 1,345,401 299,215 (1,046,186)

210,494,307 84,593,602 128,317,148 43,723,546
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17.1.3 The Company's land, buildings on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric and gas installations,
milk churns and other work equipment are measured using revaluation model. Had these revaluations
not been carried out, the carrying amount of freehold land, buildings on freehold land, plant and
machinery, electric and gas installations and other work equipment would have been as follows:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Freehold land 73,365,999 73,365,999
Buildings on freehold land 716,441,997 787,314,842
Plant and machinery - Owned assets 3,773,930,733 4,057,539,486
Plant and machinery - Right of use asset 252,379,045 292,111,059
Electric and gas Installations 5,492,365 7,530,006
Other works equipment 115,619,687 110,216,254
4,937,229,826 5,328,077,646

17.1.4 The latest revaluation was carried on at 31 December 2021 by K.G. Traders (Private) Limited. As per the
revaluation report, forced sale value of freehold land and buildings on free hold land was Rs. 638.83
million and Rs. 808.67 million respectively and forced sales value of plant and machinery, milk churns,
electric and gas installations and other works equipment was Rs. 4,776.79 million.

17.1.5 The manufacturing facility of the Company is located at Sargodha Road, Bhalwal, District Sargodha.
Total owned area is 120 kanals and 5 marlas and covered area of building is 172,550 square feet.

17.1.6 The depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

2021 2020
Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of sales 27 351,160,345 605,406,962
Marketing and distribution expenses 28 11,960,470 24,364,469
Administrative expenses 29 55,314,721 70,155,158
418,435,536 699,926,589
17.2  Capital work-in-progress
Plant and machinery - Waste water treatment plant 223,134,724 223,379,724
Note 2021 2020
18 Intangible assets Rupees Rupees
Intangible assets 18.1 402,421 19,183,317
Capital work-in-progress 183 1,169,826 1,169,826
1,572,247 20,353,143
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19 Deferred taxation - net

The deferred tax asset comprises of the following:

Deductible temporary differences:

- unused tax losses
- minimum tax
- provisions

Less: Taxable temporary differences:

Note

19.1

- accelerated tax depreciation allowances net of lease liability

- surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Deferred taxation - net

19.2

fauji foods

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
1,162,417,618 789,405,453
136,357,747 14,316,124
39,680,226 99,206,787
1,338,455,591 902,928,364
706,399,548 661,690,694
632,056,043 241,237,670
1,338,455,591 902,928,364

19.1 The aggregate unused tax losses and tax credits available to the Company for set off against future
taxable profit as at 31 December 2021 amount to Rs. 20,179.41 million (2020: Rs. 18,080.92 million)
and Rs. 136.36 (2020: Rs. 14.32 million) respectively. Of these, deferred tax assets on unused tax
losses and minimum tax credits amounting to Rs. 3,983.32 million (2020: Rs. 2,722.09 million) and Rs.
136.36 million (2020: Rs. 14.32 million) respectively have been recognized.

Expiry of tax losses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognized is as follows:

2021 2020
Tax year Rupees Rupees
2024 141,710,613 1,527,803,944
2025 2,671,290,831 2,671,290,831
2026 3,487,579,099 3,487,579,099
2027 3,408,831,285 3,408,831,285
2028 1,708,512,145 -
No expiry (depreciation loss) 4,778,299,857 4,263,325,750
19.2 Movement in deferred tax balances is as follows:
2021
Reversal from / (charge to)
Opening Profit or loss Equity Closing
Deferred taxation @ = oo .-. (Rupees) - - === == =-=-=2uu=-
Deductible / (taxable)
temporary difference
Unused tax losses 789,405,453 (373,012,165) - 111,162,417,618
Minimum Tax U/s 113 14,316,124 (122,041,623) - 136,357,747
Provisions 99,206,787 59,526,561 - 39,680,226
Accelerated tax depreciation allowances | (661,690,694) 44,708,854 - (706,399,548)
Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment (241,237,670) 796,407,014 (405,588,641) (632,056,043)
- 405,588,641 (405,588,641) -
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2020
Reversal from / (charge to)
Opening Profit or loss Equity Closing
Deductible/ (taxable) ~~  s------------- (Rupees) - - ---------------
temporary difference
Unused tax losses 834,573,351 (45,167,898) - 789,405,453
Unused tax credit 23,474,943 (23,474,943) - -
Minimum Tax U/s 113 - 14,316,124 14,316,124
Provisions 47,266,219 51,940,568 - 99,206,787
Accelerated tax depreciation
allowances (637,272,659) (24,418,035) _ (661,690,694)
Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment (268,041,854) 26,804,184 . (241,237,670)
Note 2021 2020
20 Stores, spares and loose tools Rupees Rupees
Stores 8,917,538 10,570,843
Spares 182,905,894 189,185,495
191,823,432 199,756,338
Less: provision for obsolescence (8,612,801) (8,612,801)
183,210,631 191,143,537
21 Stock-in-trade - Net of provision for NRV
Raw and packing material
- In hand 270,624,472 467,962,968
- In transit 22,463,675 14,841,894
293,088,147 482,804,862
Work-in-process 118,186,971 173,006,590
Finished goods 326,816,255 156,040,982
738,091,373 811,852,434
Less: Stocks written off during the year 31 - (207,342,928)
Less: Provision for obsolescence 211 (30,504,149) (60,526,693)
212 707,587,224 543,982,813
21.1 Movement in provision for obsolescence
Balance as at 01 January 60,526,693 55,283,299
Provision for the year 31 - 34,947,112
Written off during the year (30,022,544) (29,703,718)
Balance as at 31 December 30,504,149 60,526,693
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21.2 The amount charged to the statement of profit or loss on account of write down of finished goods
and work-in-process to net realizable value amounts to Rs. 2.3 million (2020: Rs. 2.2 million).

Trade debts Note
Unsecured

- Considered good

- Considered doubtful

Loss allowance against trade debts 221

22.1 Loss allowance against trade debts

Loss allowance as at 01 January
Loss allowance for the year
Loss allowance as at 31 December

Loan and advances - unsecured

Due from employees - Considered good
Advances to suppliers - Considered good 231

23.1 These are interest free and in the normal course of business.

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
566,068,117 350,850,105
22,455,914 22,455,914
(22,455,914) (22,455,914)
566,068,117 350,850,105
22,455,914 14,777,210
- 7,678,704
22,455,914 22,455,914
21,588,342 8,543,591
116,790,447 142,656,099
138,378,789 151,199,690

23.2 No loan or advance has been given to Chief Executive or any other Director of the Company.

Note
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Security deposits
Prepayments
Other receivables 241

24.1 Due from associated undertakings - unsecured

Noon International (Private) Limited
Fauji Cereals

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
59,701,855 54,393,092
10,138,807 12,330,886
12,314,953 12,325,036
82,155,615 79,049,014
39,247 39,247
5,829,210 2,839,293
5,868,457 2,878,540
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24.1.1 Maximum outstanding balance with reference to month end balances:

In the In the 2021 2020
month of month of Rupees Rupees
Fauji Cereals May 2021 December 2020 5,829,210 2,839,293

Noon International

(Private) Limited December 2021 December 2020 39,247 39,247

24.1.2 Due from associate is outstanding for more than six months.

24.1.1.2 These are interest free in the normal course of business on account of purchase of goods or

services.
2021 2020
25 Cash and cash equivalents Note Rupees Rupees
Cash-in-hand 99,015 95,940
Cash at banks on:
- Current accounts 1,351,328,377 106,678,949
- Saving accounts 251 522,258,306 741,891,849
- Dividend accounts 221,491 221,491
25.2 1,873,808,174 848,792,289
Term Deposit Receipt (TDR) 253 - 40,000,000
1,873,907,189 888,888,229

25.1 This carries profit at the rates ranging from 6% to 7.8% (2020: 4% to 6%) per annum.

25.2 This includes amount of Rs. 1,453.99 million (2020: Rs. 804.70) at Askari Bank Limited, a related
party.

25.3 This represented TDR having maturity of one month. It carried mark-up at the rate of Nil (2020:
5% per annum).

2021 2020
26 Revenue from contracts with customers - net Rupees Rupees
Gross sales 9,466,139,369 8,428,955,114
Less: Sales tax (458,973,667) (519,418,737)
Trade discounts (420,769,358) (536,374,310)
(879,743,025) (1,055,793,047)
8,586,396,344 7,373,162,067
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26.1 Revenue from contracts with customers relates to local (Pakistan) market and represents sale of
dairy and allied products. Timing of revenue recognition is at point of time.

26.2 The Company receives consideration from its customers in advance. In rare case credit term of 30
to 90 days is allowed.

Note 2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Cost of Sales
Raw materials consumed 4,743,368,897 3,876,828,076
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1 198,959,205 191,317,516
Freight and forwarding 128,097,183 116,081,921
Power and fuel 316,023,441 229,183,058
Packing materials consumed 1,741,298,323 1,859,712,643
Stores and spares consumed 92,801,667 129,745,885
Repair and maintenance 189,835,083 183,644,708
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 17.16 351,160,345 605.406,962
Rent, rates and taxes 656,521 2531983
Travelling and conveyance 6,938,157 5224 782
Communication, establishment & others 795,677 T
Printing and stationery 659,013 222,614
Legal and professional charges 1,698,254 1,216,631
Insurance 8,025,370 8,918,691
Others 998,753 422,727
7,781,315,889 7,210,458,197
Adjustment of work-in-process
Opening stock 173,006,590 146,456,393
Closing stock 21 (118,186,971) (173,006,590)
54,819,619 (26,550,197)
Cost of goods manufactured 7,836,135,508 7,183,908,000
Adjustment of finished goods
Opening stock 156,040,982 283,032,995
Closing stock 21 (326,816,255) (156,040,982)
(170,775,273) 126,992,013
7,665,360,235 7,310,900,013

27.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Provident fund 9,473,900 9,409,798
Long term accumulated compensated absences 4,319,192 2,201,206
Gratuity 7,540,940 3,404,888

21,334,032 15,015,892
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In addition, salaries, wages and other benefits relating to milk procurement department amounts to Rs. 98.31

million (2020: Rs. 94.22 million) and provident fund amounts to Rs. 1.88 million (2020: Rs. 1.05 million).

28

29

Marketing and distribution expenses Note

Freight and forwarding

Salaries, wages and other benefits 281
Repair and maintenance

Rent, rates and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Vehicles' running and maintenance

Advertisement and sales promotion

Insurance

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 17.1.6

Communication, establishment and others

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
134,970,766 140,309,229
261,278,989 170,493,913
2,128,315 5,515,548
4,710,401 7,715417
7,622,450 8,504,855
32,371,944 22,165,665
553,182,762 465,283,240
1,179,266 2,073,912
11,960,470 24,364,469
9,653,900 7,716,762
1,019,059,263 854,143,010

28.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

Note

Provident fund
Long term accumulated compensated absences
Gratuity

Administrative expenses

Salaries, wages and other benefits 291
Travelling and conveyance

Directors’ meeting fee 36
Rent, rates and taxes

Entertainment

Communication and establishment

Printing and stationery

Electricity, gas and water

Insurance

Repair and maintenance

Vehicles' running and maintenance

Subscription

Legal and professional charges

Auditors' remuneration 29.2
Cash security charges

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 17.1.6
Amortization of intangible assets 18.2
Others

2021 2020

Rupees Rupees
9,622,933 7,158,978
4,319,191 2,201,206
7,540,940 3,404,888
21,483,064 12,765,072
191,949,952 172,817,965
4,148,984 2,249,591
13,105,000 9,065,000
1,314,130 1,979,417
1,212,748 1,997,568
13,527,697 18,952,043
2,262,153 2,103,267
7,926,724 7,625,226
1,586,437 2,913,995
3,028,011 2,487,958
7,269,477 10,721,294
7,901,722 736,999
21,993,622 23,769,461
1,590,000 1,425,000
3,995,440 4,983,720
55,314,721 70,155,158
18,780,896 19,040,421
2,216,969 2,408,129
359,124,683 355,432,212
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29.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include following in respect of employee benefits:

2021 2020
Rupees Rupees
Provident fund 5,680,024 4,942,355
Long term accumulated compensated absences 2,159,596 1,100,600
Gratuity 3,770,470 1,702,444
11,610,090 7,745,399
29.2 Legal and professional charges
The charges for professional services include the following
in respect of auditors' services for:
- Statutory audit fee 1,210,000 1,100,000
- Half yearly review 150,000 125,000
- Certification charges 150,000 130,000
- Out-of-pocket expenses 80,000 70,000
1,590,000 1,425,000
Other income Note
Income from financial assets
Profit on saving accounts / TDRs 251 12,226,916 44,490,685
Income from non-financial assets
Sale of scrap 20,282,614 21,973,316
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  17.1.2 43,723,546 32,240,063
76,233,076 98,704,064
Other expenses
Exchange loss 523,991 628,831
Provision for obsolete stocks and stores 201&211 - 34,947,112
Stock written off 21 - 207,342,927
523,991 242,918,870
Finance cost
Islamic mode of financing
- Short term borrowings 19,359,116 203,935,674
Interest / mark-up on interest / mark-up based loans
- Long term finance 493,113,151 490,572,682
- Short term borrowings 599,235,970 926,250,488
- Restructuring fee - 78,319,607
- Lease liabilities 30,427,897 42,546,830
Bank charges and commission 12,914,390 10,642,126
1,155,050,524 1,752,267,407
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Note 2021 2020
33 Taxation Rupees Rupees
Current;
- For the year 331 122,041,623 14,316,124
122,041,623 14,316,124
Deferred:
- For the year (405,588,641) -
- Prior year - -
(405,588,641) -

33.1 In view of minimum taxation, the reconciliation of accounting profit with tax charge is not
considered meaningful and hence not presented.

34 Loss per share 2021 2020

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Loss for the year Rupees (1,252,942,258) (3,058,111,505)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Restated

in issue during the year Number 783,675,538 779,194,756
Restated

Loss per share - basic and diluted Rupees (1.60) (3.92)

2021 2020
35 Cash and cash equivalents Note Rupees Rupees

Cash and bank balances 25 1,873,907,189 888,888,229
Running finance balances 121 (1,704,824,596) (1,646,167,111)
169,082,593 (757,278,882)

36 Remuneration of Chief Executive, Directors and Executives

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for the year for remuneration, including
certain benefits, to Chief Executive, directors and executives of the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Non Executive Directors Executives
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Rupees

Managerial remuneration 19,920,000 7,200,000 - - 100,507,184 71,385,910

Meeting fee - - 13,105,000 9,065,000 - -

Consultancy fee - - - - - -
Provident fund 1,528,000 720,000 - - 10,151,345 6,739,941
House rent 5,940,000 3,240,000 - - 83,976,464 61,007,317
Utilities 1,320,000 720,000 - - 10,050,728 7,138,590
Relocation allowance - - - - 3,042,221 427,246
Others 2,200,000 1,200,000 - - 19,164,679 5,179,060
30,908,000 13,080,000 13,105,000 9,065,000 226,892,621 151,878,064
1 1 14 18 40 32

Number of persons

36.1 The Compnay also provides some of its executives with company maintained cars and other benefits in accordance with the
Company's policy.
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Factory employees Total employees
2021 2020 2021 2020

37 Number of employees (Number of persons) (Number of persons)
Total number of employees
as at 31 December 430 559 617 730
Average number of
employees during the year 500 624 681 804

Capacity Production

38 Capacity and production 2021 2020 2021 2020
Liquid products - liters 221,920,000 221,920,000 57,077,538 61,144,281
Non - Liquid products - Kg 6,743,375 6,743,375 3,906,943 1,940,207

The actual production is according to market demand.

39 Related party transactions and balances

Related parties comprise of parent company, associated companies, directors, entities with common
directorship, post employment plans and key management personnel. Balances are disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements. The Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with
related parties. Significant transactions with related parties are as follows:

- . . 2021 2020
Name of the Company Relationship Nature of transactions Rupees Rupees
Associated Undertakings
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL) Parent Company TA/DA, repair and maintenance
and rent expense charged
by related party 1,004,252 720,146
(Shareholding and Expense of IT facilities charged
common directorship) by related party 6,000,000 6,000,000
Expense borne by related party
on behalf of the Company 660,998 -
Loan received - 5,925,000,000
Finance cost charged
by related party 457,466,704 293,073,510
Conversion of loan as
subscription received
against right issue 5,925,000,000 _
Share issuance against
debt and accrued markup _ 2,748,863,714
Fauji Foundation Associated Undertaking Management shared services
charged by related party 6,069,741 1,249,999
(Shareholding and TA/DA and boarding expenses
common directorship) charged by related party 1,446,725 84,530
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. . . 2021 2020
Name of the Company Relationship Nature of transactions Rupees Rupees
Askari Bank Limited Associated Undertaking Finance cost charged
by related party 58,777,408 89,415,480
(Common directorship) Interest income on
saving accounts 8,272,438 7,997,517
Ward Howell International Associated Undertaking Head Hunter fee of CEQ
(Common directorship) appotntment - 2,472,000
FFBL Power Company Limited Associated Undertaking Purchase of coal 94,749,089 32,472,749
(Common directorship)
Fauji Cereals Associated Undertaking Purchase of Goods - 1,934,400
(Common directorship) Salary of executive charged
to the related party 4,938,165 2,224,800
Travelling expense charged
to the related party 442,458 167,506
Head Hunter fee of
appointment charged
to related party _ 444,960
Fauji Security Services (Private) Limited Associated Undertaking Expenses paid against
(Common directorship) security services 232,000 1,880,400
Noon Sugar Mills Associated Undertaking Purchase of sugar 39,530,734 52,662,600
(Common directorship)
Employee’s Provident Fund Trust Post employee benefit plan Contribution for the year 52,328,260 50,361,862
Directors Meeting fee 13,105,000 9,065,000
Key Management Personnel Remuneration and benefits 100,053,584 77,288,737

39.1 Associated companies / related parties percentage of shareholding has been disclosed in note 5.3.
40 Financial risk management
40.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including interest rate
risk, price risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential
adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company'’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by
the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to
limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management
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framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its
oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Company's exposure to financial risk, the way these risks affects the financial position and
performance and the manner in which such risks are managed is as follows:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Company's income or value of its holding of financial instruments.
The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimizing return.

40.1.1.1 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in
foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist
due to transactions with foreign buyers and suppliers.

The Company is exposed to exchange risk arising from currency exposures mainly with respect to
the Euro and US Dollar on import of raw material, packing material and stores and spares. Currently,
the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts payable to the foreign
entities. The Company's is not exposed to foreign exchange risk as at 31 December 2021 as it has no
financial instruments denominated in foreign currency.

40.1.1.2 Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instruments or its
issuer or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. The Company is not
exposed to any significant price risk.

40.1.1.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. Sensitivity to interest rate risk arises from
mismatch of financial assets and liabilities that mature or reprice in a given period.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial
instruments is as follows:

2021 2020 2021 2020
Financial assets @ ~~~"""- Effectiverate - - - - - - - - Rupees Rupees
Fixed rate instruments
Saving accounts 6% to 7.8% 4% to 6% 522,258,306 741,891,849
Term Deposit Receipt 0% 5% - 40,000,000
Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments
Lease liabilities 8.20% to 13.51%  7.56% to 14.39% 190,991,389 254,729,697
Long term finances 8.79% to 9.85% 8.40% to 14.40% 6,038,607,101 6,167,582,315
Short term borrowings 8.29% to 9.35% 8.0% to 14.60% 1,933,798,755 1,875,297,551
Loan from Parent Company  8.80% to 9.27% 8.5% to 14.5% - 5,925,000,000
Total exposure 8,163,397,245 14,222,609,563
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40.1.2.1

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss
of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

At 31 December 2021, if interest rate on variable rate financial instruments has been 1% higher /
lower with all other variables held constant, loss before tax for the year would have been Rs. 76.41
million (2020: Rs. 134.41 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense
on variable rate financial liabilities.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a financial loss if a customer or counter party to a financial
instrument fails to discharge its contractual obligation. The Company's credit risk arises from trade
debts, other receivables, and balances with banks. The Company has no significant concentration of
credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large number of counter parties.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2021 2020

Financial assets at amortized cost Rupees Rupees
Security deposits 66,307,977 60,999,214
Trade debts 566,068,117 350,850,105
Due from related parties 5,868,457 2,878,540
Other receivables 12,314,953 9,446,496
Bank balances 1,873,808,174 848,792,289
Term Deposit Receipt - 40,000,000

2,524,367,678 1,312,966,644

40.1.2.2 Credit quality and impairment

Credit quality of financial assets is assessed by reference to external credit ratings, where available,
or to historical information about counterparty default rates. All counterparties, with the exception
of customers and utility Companies, have external credit ratings determined by various credit rating
agencies. Credit quality of customers is assessed by reference to historical defaults rates and present
ages.

Counter parties with external credit ratings - Bank balances

These include banking companies and financial institutions, which are counterparties to bank
balances. Credit risk is considered minimal as these counterparties have reasonably high credit
ratings as determined by various credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships
with these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, management does not
expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Following
are the credit ratings of counterparties with external credit ratings:
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Rating Rating 2021 2020
Institutions Short Term Longterm  Agency Rupees Rupees
Bank balances
National Bank Of Pakistan AAA Al+ PACRA
721
United Bank imited . AAA AL rus  AMSTIL seos0
Askari Bank Limited AA+ Al+ PACRA 1453 996 677 754 072’ 720
JS Bank AA- Al+ PACRA 18 679 e
Bank Alfalah Limited AA+ Al+ PACRA 5'738 5737
MCB Bank Limited AAA Al+ PACRA - !
1 2
Habib Bank Limited AAA Al+  JCR-VIS gy iEybmdng
Faysal Bank Limited AA Al+ PACRA 156 ZIé 756 3’674,216
Bank Islami Pakistan A+ Al PACRA '284 '999 ’284’ 999
Bank Al-Habib Limited AAA Al+ PACRA 7'827 8 668
Soneri Bank Limited AA- Al+ PACRA . !
. . 148,056,183 -
Dubai Islamic Bank AA Al+ JCR-VIS 74,942 1.860.605
1,873,808,174 848,792,289

Counter parties without external credit ratings - Trade debts

These mainly include customers which are counter parties to trade debts. As explained in note 3.5, the
Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Management uses an allowance matrix to base the calculation of ECL of
trade receivables from individual customers. Loss rates are calculated using a 'role rate' method based on
the probability of receivable progressing through successive stages of delinquency to write-off. The
analysis of ages of trade debts and loss allowance using the aforementioned approach as at 31 December

2021 (on adoption of IFRS 9) was determined as follows:

2021
0-90 91-180 181-365 Above 365 days Total
days days days
Rupees
Expected credit loss
rate (%) 0% 1% 1% 98%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at
default 22,134,560 90,931,700 19,556,300 21,937,775 154,560,335
Estimated total gross
carrying amount -
secured 122,349,471 214,664,261 9,802,613 79,847,351 433,963,696
Expected credit loss 19,585 741,746 195,563 21,499,020 22,455,914
2020
0-90 91-180 181-365 Above 365 days Total
days days days
Rupees
Expected credit loss
rate (%) 0% 0% 0% 99%
Estimated total gross
carrying amount at default - - - 21,937,775 21,937,775
Estimated total gross -
carrying amount - secured 329,365,278 - - 744,966 351,368,244
Expected credit loss - - - 22,455,914 22,455,914




40.1.2.3 Concentration of credit risk
Concentration of credlit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect
groups of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the
Company's total credit exposure. The Company's portfolio of financial instruments is broadly
diversified and all other transactions are entered into with credit-worthy counterparties there-by
mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.
40.1.3 Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities, that are settled by delivering cash or other financial asset as
they fall due. The Company's approach is to ensure, as far as possible, to always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions. Prudent
liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and
ensuring the availability of adequate credit facilities. The Company finances its operations
through equity, borrowings and working capital with a view to maintain an appropriate mix
between various sources of finance to minimize risk. As explained in note 1.2, the Company has
continuously been supported by sponsors and providers for finance for efficient working capital
management and for meeting its contractual obligations. The Company's finance department
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping regular committed credit lines available.

The table below analyses the Company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based
on the remaining period at the reporting to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

92

Carrying Contractual Less than Between
amount cash flows 1 year 1 to 5 years
At 31 December 2021 = ------------onnaannnn Rupees-----------cmmomonnn-
Non derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 190,991,389 229,493,836 84,721,252 144,772,584
Long term finances 6,038,607,101 9,101,289,876 589,832,703 8,511,457,173
Trade and other payables 853,631,207 853,631,207 853,631,207 -
Accrued finance cost 1,267,924,682 1,267,924,682 1,267,924,682 -
Short term borrowings 1,933,798,755 1,933,798,755 1,933,798,755 -
Loan from Parent Company - - - -
10,284,953,134 13,386,138,356 4,729,908,599 8,656,229,757
Carrying Contractual Less than Between
amount cash flows 1year 1 to 5 years
At 31 December 2020 - - - oo -oo oo Rupees - - - - - - - ------------ -~
Non derivative financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 254,729,697 317,755,521 93,334,587 224,420,934
Long term finances 6,167,582,315 12,523,230,140 442,751,686 12,080,478,454
Trade and other payables 741,936,120 741,936,120 741,936,120 -
Accrued finance cost 533,632,385 533,632,385 533,632,385 -
Short term borrowings 1,875,297,551 1,875,297,551 1,875,297,551 -
Loan from Parent Company 5,925,000,000 5,925,000,000 5,925,000,000 -
15,498,178,068 21,916,851,717 9,611,952,329 12,304,899,388
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The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis
of interest / mark-up rates effective at the respective year-ends. The rates of interest / mark-up have
been disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern without
any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based
on the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices
used for financial assets held by the Company is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date (level 1).

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly (level 2).

- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability (level 3).

40.2.1 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

2021
Carrying amount
ot amortised . Other financial Total
cost iabilities

31 December 2021 Note  =============== Rupees - - - - -----==-----
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Security deposits 66,307,977 - 66,307,977
Trade debts - considered good 22 566,068,117 - 566,068,117
Due from employees 23 - - -
Other receivables 24 12,314,953 - 12,314,953
Due from related parties 24 5,868,457 - 5,868,457
Cash and bank balances 25 1,873,907,189 - 1,873,907,189

2,524,466,693 - 2,524,466,693
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Long term finances 8 - 6,038,607,101 6,038,607,101
Lease liabilities 9 - 190,991,389 190,991,389
Short term borrowing 12 - 1,933,798,755 1,933,798,755
Trade and other payables 14 - 853,631,207 853,631,207
Accrued finance cost 15 - 1,267,924,682 1,267,924,682

- 10,284,953,134 10,284,953,134
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2020
Carrying amount

Financial assets at Other financial

amortised cost liabilities Total

31 December 2020 Note @ -------------- Rupees - - - - ---------
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Security deposits 60,999,214 - 60,999,214
Trade debts 22 350,850,105 - 350,850,105
Due from employees 23 8,543,591 - 8,543,591
Other receivables 24 9,446,496 - 9,446,496
Due from related parties 24 2,878,540 - 2,878,540
Cash and Bank balances 25 888,888,229 - 888,888,229
Term Deposit Receipt 25 40,000,000 - 40,000,000

1,361,606,175 - 1,361,606,175
Long term finances 8 - 6,167,582,315 6,167,582,315
Lease liabilities 9 - 254,729,697 254,729,697
Short term borrowing 12 - 1,875,297,551 1,875,297,551
Loan from parent company 13 - 5,925,000,000 5,925,000,000
Trade and other payables 14 - 741,936,120 741,936,120
Accrued finance cost 15 - 533,632,385 533,632,385

15,498,178,068 15,498,178,068

40.2.2 Fair value versus carrying amounts

40.3

The Company has not disclosed the fair values of these financial assets and liabilities as these are for
short term or reprice over short term. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation
of fair value.

Capital risk management

The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a
going concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its
business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders and / or issue
new shares.

There was no change to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year. The
Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. As at the reporting date, the
Company has accumulated losses of Rs. 16,388 million. These indicators and other matters as
explained in note 1.2 to the financial statements may cause changes in the Company's approach to
capital management.
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Date of authorization of issue

These financial statements have been authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company
on lanuary 25, 2022.

Events after the reporting date

There are no subsequent events occurring after reporting date.

Corresponding figures

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified, wherever necessary, for the purpose of

comparison and better presentation as per reporting framework. However, no significant reclassification
has been made.

Rt it lobmon $ O)Q\é( o

>

Chairman Chlef Exetutive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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NURPUR URT MILK

ORIGINAL

i
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CREAM
MKk o

NURPUR UHT Milk is produced from freshly collected high
quality full-cream milk. It is ulfra-high temperature treated and
packed in both Tetra Pak and Ecolean Packs.
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NURPUR SALTED BUTTER

NURPUR Salted Butter is produced from fresh dairy cream with
great taste due to high-quality NURPUR butter churn. It is
hygienically packed for better protection and convenience.
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NURPUR UNSALTED BUTTER

om THE HOUSBZ*Nogp
Ll 1966 =

purpur

y
BUTTER |

WHITE BUTTER

(NGREDIENTS: Unsalted

Mk Fat 80¥a.(min.) & Motsiung 1 6% (max.)
Distribution and storage al -18°C 2
Display at maximum 4°C : e - = = |
Protessed & Packed By: I, S e
Fauji Foods Ltd. == R
42 CCA, Ex Park View, DHA
Phass - VIll, Lahore, Pakistan.
www.laulifoods.com

I B D/ Houss OfNurpur

UNSALTED B BUTTER .
YOU NEVER HAD IT BETTER

NURPUR Unsalted Butter is produced from fresh dairy cream with
great taste due to high-quality NURPUR butter chum. It is
hygienically packed in butter paper and foil for better protection
and convenience.
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NURPUR CHEESE

CHEDDHR

CHEESE SLICE

cusoona '

CHEESE

v e

NURPUR Cheddar Cheese has creamy taste with rich aroma
making it customers' first choice. NURPUR Mozzarella Cheese
provides outstanding performance in various applications so
customers can enjoy a delicious, authentic experience every time.
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NURPUR FLAVOURED MILK

Durpur

F%ﬂ I’I.A/%Eﬂ

NURPUR Flavoured Milk is a sweetened dairy product made with
fresh milk.The process involves ultra-high temperature treatment to
protect the product.
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NURPUR CREAM

NURPUR Cream is a smooth and delicious dairy cream, produced
from fresh high quality milk, Ultra-High temperature treated and
packed in Tetra packaging.
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DOSTEA TEA WHITENER

"i "o_ i
SN2 =
alZie U2
o C}g < a!('a-,.\q
i
“Doatea. | & S ‘%‘

DOSTEA Tea Whitener provides a rich and mouthful cup of tea. It is
pasteurized, ultra-high temperature treated and packed in both
Tetra Pak and Ecolean packs.
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FAUJI FOODS LIMITED
FOOD SERVICES BUSINESS

FAL Food Services Business provides a wide range of food products 1o mest the growing demands
of the food service industry including restaurants, hotels, fast food chains, bakeries, institutional
caterers and more.

With emphasis on quality and customer service, FFL Food Services Business plays a pivotal roke in
the food supply chain, ensuring the prompt delivery of quality food products that satisfy the
nuritional needs of our customers while enriching their lives with unique culinary tastes.

PRODUCT PORTFOLIO INCLUDES: (
UHT MILK

BUTTER
SALTED & UNSALTED
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CHEESE
CHEDDAR & MOZZARELLA
JAMS OUR CERTIFICATIONS
& LICENSES

* 130 6001:2015 ‘@@!‘

= PRODUCT REGISTRATION l;
WITH m Pal n Standgrds

gt o
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FAUJI FOODS LIMITED

FORM OF PROXY
Registered Folio No. /
CDC Account No.
|We
(Name)
of
(Address)
beinga member of FAUJI FOODS LIMITED, hereby appoint
(Name)
of
(Address)
or failing him
(Name)
of
(Address)

(also being a member of the Company) as my/ our proxy to attend, act and vote for me/ us and on my/ our behalf, at the 55th Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held on Wednesday, March 16, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at FFL Head Office, 42 CCA, Ex Park View,
DHA Phase-VIIl, Lahore and virtually through video-link and at any adjournment thereof,

As witness my hand this day of 2022,
Revenue Stamp Rs.5/-
Revenue
Signature of the Shareholder/ Appointer Stamp
Rs. 5/-
Witness 1 Witness 2
Signature Signature
Name Name
Address Address
CNIC # CNIC#

NOTE: Proxies in order to be effective must reach the Company’s Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the time for holding
the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed. Proxies of the Members through CDC shall be accompanied with
attested copies of their NIC.

SECP's Circular No. 1 dated 26th January, 2000 is on the reverse side of the form.
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Blue Area, Islamabad

January 26, 2000
Circular No. 1 of 2000

Sub:  GUIDELINES FOR ATTENDING GENERAL MEETINGS AND APPOINTMENT OF
PROXIES

The shares of a number of listed companies are now being maintained as “book entry Security” on the
Central Depository System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC). It has
come to the notice of the Commission that there is some confusion about the autheriticity of relevant
documents in the matter of beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC for purposes
of attending the general meetings and for verification of instruments of proxies. The issue has been
examined and pending the further instruction to be issued in this regard, the following guideline for the
convenience of the listed companies and the beneficial owners are laid down:

A. Attending of meeting in person by account holders and / or sub-account holders and persons whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploads to CDS:

N The Company shall obtain list of beneficial owners from the CDC as per Regulation # 12.3.5 of the CDC
Regulations.

2 In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are up-loaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his
identity by showing his original Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

3 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

B. Appointment of Proxies
1) In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulation, shall submit the proxy form
as per requirement notified by the Company.

) The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form,

3 Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

o The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

(5) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.
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REPORT 2 _1
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Blue Area, Islamabad

January 26, 2000
Circular No. 1 of 2000

Sub:  GUIDELINES FOR ATTENDING GENERAL MEETINGS AND APPOINTMENT OF
PROXIES

The shares of a number of listed companies are now being maintained as “book entry Security” on the
Central Depository System (CDS) of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC). It has
come to the notice of the Commission that there is some confusion about the authenticity of relevant
documents in the matter of beneficial owners of the shares registered in the name of CDC for purposes
of attending the general meetings and for verification of instruments of proxies. The issue has been
examined and pending the further instruction to be issued in this regard, the following guideline for the
convenience of the listed companies and the beneficial owners are laid down:

A. Attending of meeting in person by account holders and / or sub-account holders and persons whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploads to CDS:

M The Company shall obtain list of beneficial owners from the CDC as per Regulation # 12.3.5 of the CDC
Regulations.

@ In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are up-loaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate his
identity by showing his original Computerized National Identity Gard (CNIC) or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

3 In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of
the nominee shall be produced at the time of the meeting.

B. Appointment of Proxies
M In case of individual, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulation, shall submit the proxy form
as per requirement notified by the Company.

@ The proxy form shall be witnessed by the two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

3 Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

@ The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

5) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted along with proxy form to the Company.
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